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CORPORATE PROFILE
<6 31FTy

Established in 1991, Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limite_dlis:'_'ane
of the leading jewellery retailers in Hong Kong and the PRC. The Group
principally engages in the sourcing, designing, wholesaling and r.etailing
of a variety of gold jewellery, gold ornaments, gem-set jewellery, jadeite,
gemstones and other accessory items, with a total of over 580 retail
outlets in Hong Kong, the PRC, Macau, Canada and the United States.

The Group was listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange in May 1997.
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HONOURS & AWARDS
R BB

Apr W H
2009

May FLH
2009

Aug )\ H
2009

“PRC Consumers’ Most Favorable Hong Kong Brands 2009 — Gold Prize”
(2009 2 B L8 B B il | 2 [ 2 a8 i |

Organizer: China Enterprise Reputation and Credibility Association (Overseas) Limited
i

BN e (AN ) B

4 awards in “Worldmart Panyu International Colored Gems Design Competition”

[ S R vpr AR | il K 28 v 5 08 4 SO0
Organizers: Gems & Jewellery Trade Association of China, Guangzhou Panyu Government,
International Colored Gemstone Association

AN ¢ P ERTT L AT E I RO TR B B REBUR ~ MM AT T

“My Favourite Jewellery Brand of Hong Kong”
2588 dER gy N

Organizer: Sohu Hong Kong Channel and 10 mainstream multi-media and mobile websites

TN« AT B SR I A 1 10 2 T 3 L A T 1

“The Most Quality Jewellery Shop”

[ doc B8 TR 500 i
Organizer: TVB Weekly

RS - TVBAETI
4 awards in “The Buyers’ Favorite Jewelry Design Competition 2009
[ 3532 VU500 i vt Bo 2 2009 1 Hy S0 4 K

Organizer: Hong Kong Jewelry Manufacturers’ Association

ERRE - USRS SRR

“The 6™ Hong Kong Merchants of Integrity Award” and “ The 6™ Macau Merchants of Integrity
Award”

[ 555 7 e AR R R AV W % ) ~ 405 D ) 8 A W
“The 6" My Favourite Top Ten Brands of Hong Kong” and “The 6" My Favourite Top Ten Brands
of Macau”

(A REREEHERE TR~ (A ERE R R R

Organizer: Guangzhou Daily

TR« RN FR

“Awards for Industries: Productivity and Quality”
[2009 7 LW§EE < 2 B BT3¢ |

Organizer: Hong Kong Productivity Council
T - A )R
“Hong Kong Premier Service Brand”

[ v i IS £ 0

Organizer: Hong Kong Brand Development Council

TR AR

2 awards in “The 11" Hong Kong Jewellery Design Competition”

[ S8 — Ak SOt e | p R 2 B30T

Organizers: Hong Kong Trade Development Council, Hong Kong Jewellers’ & Goldsmiths’
Association, Hong Kong Jewellery & Jade Manufacturers Association, Hong Kong Jewelry
Manufacturers’ Association and Diamond Federation of Hong Kong, China

TR - TR D BRIR)E - HRA ARG E N e - MR E R AN - &
TR RGN e - AR

“Hong Kong Service Award - Quality Living Category 2010”

[ B R 3% 2010 — fW k5 4L |

Organizer: East Week Magazine
TR - SRR T

“Caring Company Logo”

[ v 5 e B s |

Organizer: Hong Kong Council of Social Service
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AWARDED JEWELLERY PIECES AT A GLANCE
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“2009 Buyers® Favorite Jewelry Design Competition” [{ “2009 Buyers’ Favorite Jewelry Design Competition” “2009 Buyers’ Favorite Jewelry Design Competition™
B B RO st 2 2009 32 H MO e EEE 2009 % RO flEt L #2009

Product fEfh  : Culture 7% Product fiif  : Starry Night 2% Product /i : Nature A
Award 389 : Gold Prize & # Award 35 : Gold Prize Award 383 : Silver Prize HiH
Category AL}l : Collection Design % 41l 4 Category #l}] : Earrings H-34H Category #l}] : Collection Design & 514

2009 Buyers’ Favorite Jewelry Design Competition” “The 11" Hong Kong Jewellery Design Competition™ “The 11" Hong Kong Jewellery Design Competition™
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Product fEfh  : Leaf & Branch #5 - £ 5 Product fifi  : Beart /00 Product £ : Twinkle Night & #¢
Award 3€9H : Silver Prize HiH Award $EB : Merit Award {5 4% Award $E5 : Merit Award {85 8%
Category A% : Earrings H-34H Category #1J : Open Group A B4 Category #1J] : Open Group A B#
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Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited (“Luk Fook™ or “the
Group”), I am pleased to present you the Group’s annual results for the year
ended 31st March 2010.

We made significant headway in our business for the last year. It demonstrated
that we could deliver solid sales and earnings in challenging economic cycles,
along with exceptional cash flows and very strong returns on equity and

assets.

Year 2009 is a year of progress and opportunities. The revival signs of
property market and stock market boosted the confidence of consumers

and brought significant improvement to the retail industry. PRC tourists
contribute more than half of our sales. Following the government’s relaxation
of residence permit policies for temporary residents of the Guangdong
Province in December 20009, it is expected that our retail stores are able to
capture the expanding jewellery retail business generated by the substantial
increase in the number of PRC tourists traveling to Hong Kong under

individual travel scheme.

Stepping into 2010, we will continue to dedicate unceasing effort in
promoting our brand name so as to sustain our leadership in the jewellery
retail market in the region. The Group’s quality service and creative product
designs bring high popularity to our brand. With all the competitive strengths,
we are confident that we are in a good position to capture the massive

opportunities on the increasing demands for luxury products.

CHIEF

EXECUTIVE’S
STATEMENT

A7 B

WONG Wai Sheung

Chief Executive
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We keep expanding our store network, especially that in the PRC. The Group
currently has a total of over 580 retail outlets in Hong Kong, the PRC, Macau,
Canada and the United States and will continue to look for new business
opportunities in the international market, echoing its core brand value of
“Brand of Hong Kong, Sparkling the World.”

The Group opened a two-storey retail outlet in Park Lane Shopper’s
Boulevard, Tsim Sha Tsui, Hong Kong in December 2009. Eyeing its
satisfactory business performance, we opened our flagship store, another
two-storey sized approximately 6,000 square feet retail outlet at Haiphong
Mansion in April 2010, bringing the total number of retail outlets in Hong
Kong to 32 at present. With the excellent location of the new flagship store,

we expect an increase in the sales mix derived from tourists.

Last year, we were honoured to be the pilot company participating in the
early R&D, execution and promotion of J-ID (Jewelry-ID). A unique Global
J-ID technology encrypts the information of the jewelry to 2-dimensional
bar code and then craves it on the product. Customers can search through the
jewelry content and its related information from the J-ID website according to
the 10-digit code printed on the receipt. This innovative technology not only
assists Luk Fook to further enhance its brand image, but also motivates Hong

Kong Jewelry with high-quality brand to expand the China market.

Annual Report 2010 43
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S STATEMENT
A7 B AR

I am also glad that the Group was awarded the “2009 Hong Kong Awards for
Industries: Productivity and Quality”, recognizing the Group’s productivity
and the outstanding performances on quality. The Group possesses excellent
production technology and has strict standard on our products. We will
continue to explore and provide new products and services in the future, and

to enhance our product quality assurance system as well.

OUTLOOK

Looking ahead, the Group shall continue to concentrate its effort on
developing the PRC market. With the strong growth of GDP, the purchasing
power of PRC customers is increasingly high, and their demand for luxury
goods increases substantially as well. According to the figures from World
Gold Council, PRC is the only country recorded an increase in gold demand
last year. The Group sees great potential in the development of the PRC

market and is determined to further increase its market-share in the PRC.
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The Group would continue to develop business in mainland by enlarging the
sales network, so as to seize the opportunity brought by the appreciation of

Renminbi and the relative strong economic growth of the PRC. Moreover, the
Group would actively look for the opportunities to open self-operated shops
in second and third tier cities to increase the market share. The Group will also

strive to establish its presence in overseas markets when opportunities arise.

Last but not least, the hard work of our staff cannot go unnoticed. Our success
relies on the outstanding efforts of our staff in providing the best service to
our valuable customers. Their effort undoubtedly contributed to the great
success of our business performance worldwide. In the years to come, we
will continue to strive for business growth with exceptional energy and
seize opportunities to further expand our sales network on the international
platform. We will also engage our customers and repay their loyalty to the

Group by designing better products with greater creativity and excellence.

By order of the Board
WONG Wai Sheung

Chief Executive

Hong Kong, 20th July 2010
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Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PR i e 3 B

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Results
For the year ended 31st March 2010, the Group’s total revenue was

approximately HK$5,386,432,000, which represented a 36% growth as
compared to HK$3,959,227,000 in the previous year. Profit attributable

to shareholders rose 93.2% to approximately HK$531,632,000 from
HK$275,160,000 of last year. Operating profit margin improved by 3.8% to
11.8%. Basic earnings per share were HK 107.9 cents (2009: HK 55.9 cents).

Dividend

The Directors proposed a final dividend of HK 28 cents per share (2009: HK 12
cents per share) for the year ended 31st March 2010. In addition to the interim
dividend of HK 15 cents per share (2009: HK 5 cents per share) already paid, the
dividend for the full year amounted to HK 43 cents per share (2009: HK 17 cents
per share). The proposed dividend will be paid on 13th September 2010 following
the approval at the Annual General Meeting.

Overview
Benefited by the recovery of the global economy, the overall performance in the

financial year 2009/10 was encouraging. The step-up in the overall performance

was mainly attributable to the substantial increase in retail and wholesale volume.

The Group’s revenue from the retail business, which accounted for 76% of the
total revenue, amounted to HK$4,090,804,000, representing an increase of 33%
compared to last year. Meanwhile, revenue from wholesale business, which
accounted for 21% of the total revenue, reached HK$1,122,098,000, registering
a 50% growth from last year. Notwithstanding the surging gold price during the
year, gold products remained popular among customers. For the year ended 3 1st
March 2010, gold products and gemstone jewellery products, excluding trade-
in transactions, contributed approximately 53% and 47% of the Group’s sales.
Moreover, figures from the Census and Statistics Department in Hong Kong
shows that in 2009, number of marriages increased 7.9% from last year. Wedding
couples who have a strong demand in gold products also favored the Group’s

retail sales.
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Mainland visitors contributed over 50% of the Group’s Hong Kong retail sales.
According to the figures from the Hong Kong Tourism Board, mainland arrivals
increased by 6.5% to approximately 17 million in 2009. The Group could
therefore benefit from the growing number of the PRC tourists who demanded
for luxury and quality jewellery items in Hong Kong.

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

Hong Kong Market

The Hong Kong market remained the key market of the Group, accounting for
approximately 74% of the Group’s total revenue. As at 31st March 2010, the
Group operated a total of 31 retail outlets in Hong Kong. During the year under
review, the Group opened a two-storey self-operated shop in Park Lane Shopper’s
Boulevard, Tsim Sha Tsui.

Over 50% of Hong Kong sales were contributed by the PRC tourists and the
spending of the PRC tourists has been the key support of our Hong Kong sales. In
favour of the government’s relaxation on individual travel scheme, sales derived
from tourists kept increasing. To capture the growing number of PRC tourists,
the Group sought opportunities to establish shops at tourists’ must-visit shopping
districts such as Tsim Sha Tsui and Causeway Bay. During the year, the Group

increases the number of retail shops in Tsim Sha Tsui to five.

In August 2009, the Group acquired the whole block of Cyber Plaza, a 18-storey
commercial building situated in Jordon, Kowloon, mainly for the purpose of
accommodating the Group’s head office operation.

In April 2010, the Group established the flagship store at Haiphong Mansion in
Tsim Sha Tsui and its first OMEGA Watch counter which registered satisfactory
sales performance. The Group would explore opportunities to collaborate with

other prestigious brands so as to tap the sizable watch market.

During the period, the Group continued to market and promote the brand through
a range of joint promotion, sponsorship and exhibition, and received satisfactory
results.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
GE R ) Zig

PRC Market
The Group’s business benefited greatly from the strong growth of economy of

the PRC. During the year under review, revenue from the PRC market accounted
for 16% of the Group’s total revenue, amounting to HK$855,496,000 (2009:
HK$551,454,000), representing a 55% increase as compared to the previous year.

During the year, the Group established 83 licensee shops in the PRC,
accumulating its total number to 483. Apart from expanding the licensee shop
network, the Group sets up self-operated shops as well. As at 31st March
2010, the Group had 36 self-operated shops in the PRC, of which 17 is newly
established. The Group continues to look for suitable location for self-operated
shops in the PRC and the number of them is expected to increase rapidly.

Macau Market
During the period, the Group operated four self-operated shops in Macau and held

an optimistic view in its retail industry. The business performance of the Macau
shops was encouraging during the year under review. Revenue from the Macau
shops amounted to HK$504,957,000, representing a 88% increase as compared

to the previous year.

Overseas Market
The Group currently has two shops (one self-operated and one licensed) in

Canada and one self-operated shop in the United States. The Group will continue
to work according to the corporate motto of “Brand of Hong Kong, Sparkling the
World”, looking for opportunities to expand the overseas market with a view to

build up an international image.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Products

During the year, the Group diversified its customer segments by launching
a series of new products with exquisite designs and craftsmanship featuring
different celebrations and festivals. Promotional series are as follows:

*  “Warm-hearted” Collection for Mother’s Day Promotion

e “Admiring Heart” and “Praising Me” Series of “K-gold”” 18K Gold
Collection joinly promoted with World Gold Council

*  “Wedding Ring” Collection

*  Pure gold “Xifu” Collection for wedding couples

¢ Summer Collection 2009

*  “Love Forever” Collection with celebrity Mr. Raymond Lam as the
spokesperson in the PRC

e “My Precious Platinum 2009 Collection” jointly promoted with Platinum
Guild International

*  “Convergence of Love” Collection specially designed for sparkling
Christmas

*  Pure gold ornaments “Lucky Tiger” Collection, mini gold accessories of “12
Chinese Zodiac” and “Lucky Tiger”” Gold Bar Collection to celebrate the

Lunar New Year

*  “Sol Enjoy” and “Sol Joyful” Series of “Sol Diamond” Collection for Labour
Day Promotion
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Sales Network
As at 31st March 2010, the Group had 73 wholly owned retail outlets under the

brand name of “Luk Fook” in the PRC, Hong Kong, Macau, the United States
and Canada. One new shop was opened in Tsim Sha Tsui during the year,

accumulating the number of shops in Hong Kong to a total of 31.

During the year, the Group operated a total of 36 self-operated shops in various
provinces and cities in the PRC, including Beijing, Guangzhou, Nanjing,
Shanghai, Hangzhou, Wuhan and Jinan. The number of licensee shops in the PRC
had also increased to 483 as at 31st March 2010.

Marketing and Promeotion
To be in line with the corporate motto of “Brand of Hong Kong, Sparkling the

World” and to further strengthen Luk Fook Jewellery’s corporate brand image,
the Group actively participated in a wide spectrum of marketing activities and
publicity campaigns in order to further consolidate its brand positioning and
increase awareness in global jewellery market, as well as to expand the global
retail network. Meanwhile, the Group also adopted both long-term and creative
marketing strategies in its key markets to publicize its revamped brand image to

more customer segments and to boost sales.

During the year, the Group continued to actively design and execute various
marketing plans via channels including TV, print, outdoor and Internet
advertising, direct marketing, public relations, jewellery sponsorships and
exhibitions. Below were some highlights:

»  Sponsored the diamond crown and precious jewellery pieces to “Miss Hong

Kong Pageant” for the 12" consecutive year

»  Being the official sponsor of the crown and jewellery for “Miss Asia

Pageant” for consecutive years

»  Sponsored the “Miss Chinese Pageant” in Vancouver and Toronto, Canada

for several years

»  Being the exclusive sponsor of the crowns and scepter for “City Beauties

Pageant” for consecutive years
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Broadcasted large volume of TV commercials through mainstream TV
channels in Hong Kong and the PRC, and sponsored products for TV
programmes and key dramas

Launched new TV commercial series “Love is Beauty”

Enhanced the advertising impact by strategically placed outdoor
advertisement at the back of KMB buses of different routes throughout Hong
Kong

Actively explored online promotion platform by banner advertisement,

advertorial write-up and online games

Introduced key items and new products in festivals including Mother’s Day,
Labour Day and National Day, stimulating consumers’ demand through
publicity programmes in order to achieve better sales results

Invited celebrity Mr. Raymond Lam as the spokesperson of “Love Forever”
Collection in the PRC

Sponsored TVB’s production — “Raymond Lam Special” and “LET’s GET
WET” concert

Invited celebrities Mr. Raymond Lam, Ms. Yoyo Mung and Mr. Zhoulibo to
attend ribbon-cutting activities in different cities of the PRC in celebration of
the grand opening of new shops

Participated in “Style Hong Kong, Wuhan”, an exhibition that was well-
recognized in Hong Kong and the PRC

Took part in “Joint Coalition Against Financial Tsunami” and issued
consumption vouchers so as to encourage local spending in Hong Kong and
fight against the financial tsunami

Cooperated with UnionPay China to launch “UnionPay Shopping in
Summer” by offering privileges to UnionPay China users
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* Participated in “Hong Kong Wedding & Wedding Gifts Expo 2009” and
“Hong Kong Wedding & Overseas Wedding Expo 2009 held in Hong
Kong Convention and Exhibition Centre, as well as “The 2" InterContinental
Shenzhen Wedding Exhibition” held in InterContinental Shenzhen

»  Title sponsored “Cantonese Opera Excerpt” by well-known artist Ms. Connie
Chan Po Chu

»  Sponsored a “Ming Chee Sing Chinese Opera Show” exclusively for
Lukfook Jewellery’s customers

» Jointly organized a seminar on the overview of Year of the Tiger with
a famous Master of Chinese Fung Shui Philosophy — Lee Sing Tong
exclusively for Lukfook VIP members

»  Established an exclusive booth for selling of lucky gold accessories in Che
Kung Temple, Shatin during the Lunar New Year

*  Made donation to extend support to “Tung Wah Charity Show 2009

»  Sponsored the prizes and souvenirs for “The Bun Carnival 2009” annually
held in Cheung Chau

» Participated in the “Global Jewelry-ID Management Label Scheme” as a
pilot company

»  Carried out joint promotion with renowned brands including Haier, Nestle,
P&G, Shiseido and Watsons, etc

Brand Management
The Group strongly believes that brand reputation will greatly affect sales

performance. Therefore, the Group exerts unceasing effort to work for a well-
developed brand management system, which strives to convey a consistent brand
image and enhance its superior brand popularity in the markets, continuing to
reinforce its trusted brand image and boost customers’ purchasing confidence.
The Group launched Luk Fook TV channel, broadcasting live every important
event of Luk Fook in each retail store in Hong Kong.
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During the year, the Group obtained a number of awards in recognition of its
outstanding achievements in quality service, brand building and management.
They included:

*  “PRC Consumers’ Most Favorable Hong Kong Brands 2009 — Gold Prize”

for 4 consecutive years

*  “My Favourite Jewellery Brand of Hong Kong” in “My Best Favourite
Brand in Hong Kong 2009”

e “2009 Hong Kong Awards for Industries: Productivity and Quality”

*  “Hong Kong Premier Service Brand” in “2009 Hong Kong Top Brand
Awards & Hong Kong Top Service Brand Awards”

e “Caring Company Logo 2009/10”

*  “Hong Kong Service Award 2010 — Quality Living Category” from East
Week Magazine

*  “Hong Kong Merchants of Integrity Award” & “Favourite Top Ten Brands
of Hong Kong” for 5 consecutive years

*  “Macau Merchants of Integrity Award” & “Favourite Top Ten Brands of
Macau” for 2 consecutive years

*  “The Most Popular Brand Award 2009 — The Most Popular Apparel Brand”
from TVB Weekly

e “2009 Hong Kong Awards for Environmental Excellence — Certificate of
Merit in Manufacturing Sector”

Gaining international recognitions also helped strengthening the Group’s brand

image in the global jewellery industry.

Annual Report 2010 4F3

ARG B AR BE A AR > DIRIG AR E
WA~ it i S R B Th ) B o RS 8
THAEE

o HUHVUAESEHE [20094E R B Ik m B A
T G — 44 |

o [20094F ik B E AU A 1 [ e EE
HETREL A A |

o [2009 F ik TRIESE « A ) i 32

o 12009 457 47 hi 138 5 T 5 4 Al s 47 g B2
H SR [ 7 S 47 R )

o[PS R BB EE 2009/10 ]

o AR T ) 2 MR T F O RS K B8
2010 — &A= 5 AL A

o HERAESOE [ R EWGT R TRE
SR R NG

o EHEEAWAESOME PR TE) R TRE
=Sl AL R NG

o BECTVBBFDMEEEN [TVB AZ MRS
2009 — e B R E 1 A5

o [2009 FFF BB AR w1 — Bk S 0B LG

12 150 R 0 4 JBE AT B 8 5] A 4 B 2 BRER B
ESIDELLLSIZ S



B ) A

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
GE R ) Zig

Production
In order to enhance cost effectiveness and production efficiency, the Group has

adopted a certain degree of vertical integration and used its production facilities in
Hong Kong to operate a portion of the gold and gem-set jewellery’s production
processes. Besides, the Group invested approximately HK$100,000,000 to set
up a large-scale jewellery processing plant in Panyu, Guangdong, the PRC,
with a total floor area of over 350,000 square feet. The total production capacity
increased three times that of the old factory with the full operation of the new
plant.

Portal Operation
The Group’s portal “www.jewellworld.com” or “www.jw28.com” is an

electronic gateway for the global jewellery industry. It not only serves as a
business-to-business trading platform among manufacturers, wholesalers and
retailers all over the world, but also an additional promotion and distribution

channel for the Group.

It is regarded as a long-term plan for the Group to penetrate into the PRC as well as
global market, and paves the way for exploring jewellery markets worldwide. The
Group believes that every Internet user is their prospective customer; and jewelers
will use website more frequently to view product samples and to order jewellery

as to streamline their operation procedures. It will enhance business potential.

Design

The Group is famous for its stylish designs of jewellery products. With the
Group’s outstanding and award-winning design teams, the Group has designed
over 20,000 styles for customers’ selections. Those creative, attractive and
fashionable products were well received by the markets all these years. On top of
that, with the Group’s experienced management team, the Group has proved to be
capable of anticipating changes in the consumers’ tastes and preferences, which

has helped to ensure a promising future for the Group.
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To widen the horizons and enhance the creative inspiration, the Group was
also keen on participating in various local and international jewellery design
competitions during the year. A number of awards were gained in these

competitions, which included:

* 4 awards in Worldmart Panyu International Colored Gems Design
Competition

* 2 Gold Prize and 2 Silver Prize in the section of Earrings and Collection
Design in “The Buyers’ Favorite Jewelry Design Competition 2009”

e 2 merit awards in “The 11" Hong Kong Jewellery Design Competition”

Quality Assurance
The Group is committed to maintaining the highest level of product quality. To

ensure the best quality of products, the Group set up its wholly owned subsidiary
gems laboratory “China Gems Laboratory Limited” in 1996. Its scope of services
includes authentication, grading of diamonds, and authentication of jades and
colored gemstones and quality assessment of jewellery. The Laboratory is
operated by dozens of certified gemologists who specialize in the authentication
of gemstones and jade. Every year, the laboratory tests for over 100,000 pieces
of jewellery and gemstones on average. The Laboratory passed the ISO 17025 in
jadeite authentication and diamond testing and grading accredited by the Hong
Kong Accreditation Service, also met the principles of ISO 9001:2008 Quality
Management Systems — Requirements, demonstrating the professional quality
assurance system of the Group. China Gems Laboratory is the only subsidiary
laboratory of local jewellery retailer obtaining both accreditations.

Environmental Protection
The Group’s factory in Panyu obtained the ISO 14001:2004 Environmental

Management System, demonstrating its environmental-friendly manufacturing
process. Moreover, the Group also attained “2009 Hong Kong Awards for
Environmental Excellence — Certificate of Merit in Manufacturing Sector” for
its outstanding environmental performance. The Group will continue to work

towards environmental sustainability while delivering quality products.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources
The Group’s core business is gold and jewellery retailing. As at 31st March

2010, the Group’s cash on hand reached approximately HK$287 million (2009:
HK$280 million). The Group’s bank borrowings-to-equity ratio at the year-end,
being the proportion of total bank borrowings of approximately HK$314 million
(2009: HK$169 million) against total shareholders’ equity of approximately
HK$1,664 million (2009: HK$1,256 million), was 18.9% (2009: 13.5%).

The Group’s income and expenditure streams are mainly denominated in Hong

Kong dollars.

Capital Expenditure
During the year under review, the Group incurred capital expenditures of

approximately HK$315 million (2009: HK$30 million), including the costs
of properties, leasehold land, leasehold improvement, furniture, fixture and

equipment.

Capital Commitments
As at 31st March 2010, the Group had total capital commitments in respect of

acquisition of property, plant and equipment of approximately HK$7 million
(2009: HK$1 million).

Contingent Liabilities
The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities at 31st March 2010
and 31st March 2009.

Employment, Training, Development and Recruitment

Remuneration Policy
As at 31st March 2010, the number of employees of the Group was approximately

3,053 (2009: 2,445). Remuneration policies are reviewed and approved by

the management on a regular basis. Remuneration packages are structured

to take into account the comparable level of the market. Bonus and other

merit payments are linked to the success of the Group and the performance of
individual employee. The policy is to encourage employees to optimize business

performance by providing them with financial incentives.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BN

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

For the year ended 31st March 2010, the Company had properly applied

the principles of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices contained

in Appendix 14 (the “Code”) included in the Rules governing the listing

of securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing

Rules”) as follows:

A.
Al

A2

A3

A4

AS

Directors
The Company is supervised by a Board of Directors who assumes

responsibility for leadership and control of the Company and is
collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Company
by directing and strategising the Company’s affairs. They make

decisions objectively in the interests of the Company.

An independent non-executive director acts as the Board Chairman
while an executive director acts as the Chief Executive. There is a
clear division of responsibilities for the management of the Board and
the day-to-day management of the Company’s business to ensure a

balance of power and authority.

The Board comprises 6 executive directors, 5 non-executive directors
and 3 independent non-executive directors. They include persons
with a wealth of practical experiences in the jewellery industry,
accountancy profession, legal profession, general trading and

the securities industry. It has a balance of skills and experiences
appropriate for the requirements of the Company’s business. The
directors’ respective roles and biographies are set out on pages 40 to
45.

All directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at the Company’s annual general meeting in accordance with the

Company’s Bye-laws.

Every director is continuously-reminded of the requirement to keep
abreast of his responsibility as a director of the Company, with
reference to the Listing Rules and the Company Laws inclusive, and
of the conduct, business activities and development of the Company.
Every independent non-executive director also confirms annually his

independence status to the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
(Continued)

A. Directors (Continued)
A.6  Directors are provided with appropriate information to enable them

to make an informed decision and to discharge their duties and

responsibilities as directors of the Company.

B. Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management
B.1 Information relating to the Company’s directors’ remuneration

policy and other remuneration related matters are disclosed in

the Company’s annual report. The Remuneration Committee is
responsible for setting policy on the remuneration of executive
directors and senior management and for fixing the remuneration
packages. The level of remuneration is sufficient to attract and retain
the directors needed to run the Company successfully. No director is

involved in deciding his own remuneration.

C.  Accountability and Audit

C.1 The directors are responsible for preparing the financial statements
of each financial period, which give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at the financial period
end and of the result and cash flows of the Group for the year. In
the Company’s interim and annual reports which are issued within
the time limits stipulated by the Listing Rules, the Board presents
a balanced, clear and comprehensive assessment of the Company’s
performance, position and prospects. The published financial
statements adopt, and consistently apply, suitable accounting policies
complying with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

C.2  The Board ensures the Company maintains sound and effective
internal control to safeguard the shareholders’ interest and the
Company’s assets. The Audit Committee, with the assistance of
the Internal Audit Team, regularly reviews the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control system. The Head of the Internal Audit

Team directly reports to the Audit Committee.

C3 The Board establishes monitoring and procedural guidelines for
considering how it will apply the financial reporting and internal
control principles and for maintaining an appropriate relationship
with the Company’s external auditors. The Audit Committee
established by the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules has clear

terms of reference.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
(Continued)

D.
D.1

D.2

E2

Delegation by the Board

The Company has a formal schedule of matters specifically reserved
to the Board for its decision. The Board gives clear directions to
management as to the matters that must be approved by the Board

before decisions are made on behalf of the Company.

The Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee were formed
with specific written terms of reference that deal clearly with the
committees’ authority and duties. Such terms of reference are made
available to the public.

Communication with Shareholders
The Board maintains an on-going dialogue with shareholders and

in particular, endeavors to provide transparency and uses the annual
general meetings to communicate with shareholders and invites their
participation in certain marketing events. Besides, the Company’s
official website serves as a handy communication channel for

the shareholders. Press releases and announcements about the

Company’s business affairs are made from time to time.

The Company informs shareholders of the procedure for voting by
poll in the circular to shareholders, and ensures compliance with the
requirements about voting by poll contained in the Listing Rules and

the Company’s Bye-laws.

None of the directors is aware of any information that would reasonably

indicate that the Company is not, or was not for any part of the year ended

31st March 2010, in compliance with the Code.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopts the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing

Rules as a code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions.

Having made specific enquiry of all directors, it is confirmed that they have

complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code and its code

of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions in relation to the year
ended 31st March 2010.
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Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
B

BOARD OF DIRECTORS A
During the year ended 31st March 2010, the Company’s board of directors AEE20104E3 H 31 HIEEN » AN R EHE
comprised 6 executive directors, 5 non-executive directors and 3 independent MAZBHATESE ~ TAFIITERE L =4
non-executive directors. Individual directors’ attendance at board meetings PATE RN - BN FREF BT ER G E®
during the year were as follows: Z W -

Attendance
Total number of Board meetings: 10 WP EHRARY : 10K HR %
Executive Directors HIT#EF
Mr. WONG Wai Sheung (Chief Executive) BRI (T 10 100%
Mr. TSE Moon Chuen WM A2 e 10 100%
Mr. LAW Tim Fuk, Paul FERAR L 10 100%
Mr. LAU Kwok Sum BIBARCE 10 100%
Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny HIHHESEAE 10 100%
Miss WONG Lan Sze, Nancy B R/ NE 10 100%
Non-executive Directors A THESH
Mr. WONG Koon Cheung HOE T A 8 80%
Mr. CHAN Wai Bl SeE 8 80%
Mr. LEE Shu Kuan ZERH T 8 80%
Miss YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline HHE /N 5 50%
Mr. HUI King Wai FrB A 5 50%
Independent Non-executive Directors LI ITHESH
Mr. HUI Chiu Chung, JP FFIR R4 9 90%
Mr. LO Mun Lam, Raymond (Chairman) ERER A (EIF) 10 100%
Mr. TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander W R e 10 100%

Average Ty 88%



BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

The Board’s role is to provide entrepreneurial leadership of the Company
within a framework of prudent and effective controls which enables risk to
be assessed and managed. The Board controls the business but delegates
day-to-day responsibility to the executive management. The Board sets

the Company’s strategic aims, values and standards and ensures that its
obligations to its shareholders and others are understood and met. In the
interests of the Company, a number of matters are reserved by the Board.
Certain matters are the subject of recommendations by the Audit Committee
or Remuneration Committee. The Company Secretary, referring to the list
of reserved matters for the Board, assists the Chairman in establishing the
agenda of Board meetings. Each director may also request inclusion of
items in the agenda. Minutes of the Board/Committee meetings are open for

inspection by the directors.

The Company confirms that it has received from each of the independent
non-executive directors, namely, Mr. LO Man Lam, Raymond, Mr. HUI Chiu
Chung, JP and Mr. TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander, an annual confirmation of
his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and that it still

considers each independent non-executive director to be independent.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Mr. LO Mun Lam, Raymond, an independent non-executive director, acts
as Chairman of the Board, while Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, an executive
director, acts as the Chief Executive. Their roles are segregated and therefore
are not exercised by the same individual. The Chairman is responsible for
the leadership and effective running of the Board. The Chief Executive is
delegated with the authority and responsible for running the Company’s
business, implementing the Company’s strategies in achieving business

objectives.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All the non-executive directors are appointed for two years, and the existing
appointments last until 31st March 2012.
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Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 75442 [H] (B [#%) A BR/2#]

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

In compliance with the Code, the Board on 7th April 2005 established

a Remuneration Committee comprising 3 independent non-executive
directors and 2 executive directors. The remuneration committee is to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for
all remuneration of directors and senior management; to determine the
specific remuneration packages; to review and approve performancebased
remuneration; to review and approve the compensation payable in connection
with any loss or termination of office or appointment of directors and

senior management; to oversee any major changes in employee benefits
structures throughout the Company or the Group; and to review the ongoing

appropriateness and relevance of the remuneration policy.

Individual committee members’ attendance at Remuneration Committee

meetings during the year were as follows:

e

B a~F AIKUE - & &R 200544 H 7 H BOL
HNZEEE > =B AT EE WA AT
AR o HNZE B E A A 2R s )
I B 2 R 1 A5 S R e
i wT LB ETAL G~ A M A AR BGRB8
L~ AT B A B AR A 1L 2 e AT
FRRRE B A B2 AT - B A
A B B AR R A5 2 AT R B 5 DL R
AT BOR 2 A5 A

I8 22 B BT 1A L T ST 2 B ek 2
PR

Total number of Attendance Attendance
Remuneration Committee meetings: 2 FMZ B ERAKY 2 W%
Executive Directors HITEF

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung B Ak 100%
Mr. TSE Moon Chuen Hhm Ak 100%
Independent Non-executive Directors Hor P TH S

Mr. HUI Chiu Chung, JP (Committee Chairman) PRSP (FE A ) 2 100%
Mr. LO Mun Lam, Raymond BB A 100%
Mr. TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander W R e 50%
Average Sy 90%

In July and December 2009, the Remuneration Committee held 2 meetings to
review the policies for determining annual salary increments for the calendar
year 2010, to approve the payment of the discretionary year end bonus for
2009 and an incentive bonus scheme for all non-sales employees working at
the Head Office.

Particulars of the Directors” emoluments disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16

of the Listing Rules are set out in note 16 to the financial statements.

A20004E7 H K12 H > FitiZ: B & e 4 B Mk
AR ETBOR - AR 2010 J8 4F 2 4 B # 4 n
W~ LI S 2009 47 4F A& 7 16 AT S SR i e
HIRSHEE B 2 SEBEAL -

AR TR BT BA S5k 1 6:45 8 2 = M < 1 S P
SRR MR 16 -



NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Board is directly responsible for the nomination procedures, process
and criteria adopted to select and recommend candidates for directorship.
No nomination of directors was processed during the year ended 31st March
2010.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Analysis of remuneration in respect of audit and non-audit services
provided by the external auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, Certified Public

Accountants, are as follows:
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2010 2009
HKS$°000 HKS$°000

T T

Audit services TR 3,160 3,096
Non-audit services Ik E IR Es 149 68
Total st 3,309 3,164

The responsibilities of the external auditor with respect to financial reporting

are stated in the Independent Auditor’s Report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

In compliance with the Code of Best Practice applicable before 1st January
2005, the Board established an Audit Committee on 1st February 1999,
comprising 3 independent non-executive directors, in order to monitor the
accounting and financial reporting practices and internal control systems of
the Company. During the year ended 31st March 2010, the Audit Committee
held 2 meetings to consider matters including the 2009 annual report of the
Company, internal controls, the unaudited interim condensed consolidated
financial information for the six months ended 30th September 2009, and the

Company’s IT control environment.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
B

AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued) £ 2 2 3 8 4C )
Individual committee members’ attendance at Audit Committee meetings RENE R ZZE B g R E a2
during the year were as follows: B

Attendance
Total number of audit committee meetings: 2 TR B EARY : 2k %
Independent Non-executive Directors WL T EH
Mr. HUI Chiu Chung, JP AR R 2 100%
Mr. LO Mun Lam, Raymond (Committee Chairman) — W& ICE (Z5 5 @& F07) 2 100%
Mr. TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander B R SEAE 2 100%
Average T 100%
INTERNAL CONTROL P
The Board is responsible for the Company’s system of internal control and HREGATAN A NS BRI - B REZE
for reviewing its effectiveness through the Audit Committee. Berbant s -
The internal control system is designed to provide assurance on the TAL P8 2 o o T 7 DR SIS A RO - 8 SRl gk

effectiveness and efficiency of operations, reliability of business record, and A SERRE DL R IR AC N W R B R AR T

the compliance with Company’s policies and procedures.

The system aims to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against AR S B A A (1 JF AR ) FECRAS 6 L 3 R
material misstatement or loss rather than eliminate risks of failure in FRBR AR SR K > TN JE S R AR R SRR L
operational systems, and to ensure achievement of the Company’s objectives. JEBR AR AR B A R HEE ©

The Audit Committee has received the internal control evaluation report T B O N R e A AL 2 58 2 A e
submitted by the Internal Audit Team. The report summarised information RPN o A% R AL T 81 AR 2 R

relating to the work carried out in the following areas:

. The results of selective testing of internal control procedures, assets, . AN T NIRRT - EE R R
and financial records of the Company; [2iily TTEwE

. A general evaluation of internal control system installed by the . AR T BT BR AR A B B A B 2 — I RT
Company; and fili 5

. An outline of major control issues, if any noticed during the year. ° B H AR BEE R B 2 AT ] = B P o

The Audit Committee has reviewed the report and discussed with the TR B G AR Z A - 3 B S AT R

management. i e



INTERNAL CONTROL (Continued)

The Audit Committee recognised that an examination of the internal control
system has been adequately executed by the Internal Audit Team and the
Committee acknowledged that the management has been progressively
installing an adequate internal control system in order to ensure the
effective functioning of the Company’s operations. The Committee has

also recommended a further extension of system to the area of various risks

protection aspect in order to safeguard the assets of the Company.

INTERNAL AUDIT

The internal audit is an independent function undertaken by the Internal
Audit Team reporting administratively to the Company’s management and
functionally to the Audit Committee. The Internal Audit Team is authorized

to obtain all information necessary to accomplish internal audit work.

A risk based audit approach has been adopted by the Internal Audit Team.
Internal control reviews are arranged regularly while paying close attention
to business or operation changes. Regular audit tests are carried out to ensure
key controls are operational. The Internal Audit Team conducts other projects

and investigating work as may be required.

Any significant internal audit findings are discussed with respective
department heads to have actions agreed and subsequently followed up, in

order to ensure that satisfactory control is maintained.

In each half-yearly work plan, manning levels of the Internal Audit Team are
agreed with the Audit Committee. A summary of the internal audit activities

and audit results are also submitted to the Audit Committee twice a year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
B

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT WP R IR Z M BIR AT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES
As at 31st March 2010, save as disclosed below, none of the directors and JA20104E3 31 H » Br R CHEREE SN » AAFHE

chief executive of the Company had interests and short positions in the shares, i N EBATEON B MR BT N ST AR AR 12
underlying shares and debentures of the issuer or any associated corporation (7 78 8 F5 RO B ) (178 25 S B el ) 56
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance XV ) Z Bty - AHBERE Y S 525 P A (a) MRE
(“SFO”)) which (a) were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be 7 B B AR A9 26 352 ek i 2 R0 Bk A 5% Ak 191 i
entered in the register referred to therein; or (b) were required, pursuant to the AT 5 B (b) ARARC E A R S AT R SRS
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies to T W REYE S FU )Y ZE R0 8 AR O ) BB 22 T 2 i i I
be notified to the Company and the Exchange: WA -

I.  Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the L A2 A B BBy 2 45 4T

Company:
Beneficial Controlled Beneficiary Total % of
Name of Director Owner Spouse  Corporation of Trust Interest Shares
[ 3 3% HaA A A RN fERERRA BEREALEL MROYE Al
Mr. WONG Wai Sheung 8,527,232 320,000 244,820,176 1,511,050 255,178,458 51.81 %
e note (d)  note (a) & (b) note (c)
Bk  BiEE ) K& () B EE ()
Mr. TSE Moon Chuen 457,344 244,820,176 245,277,520 49.80%
EiR s note (a) & (b)
B 3T (a) K (b)
Mr. WONG Koon Cheung 2,678,090 244,820,176 247,498,266 50.25%
[ St note (a) & (b)
HFRE () % (b)
Mr. CHAN Wai 3,899,022 244,820,176 248,719,198 50.50%
PSR note (a) & (b)
BT (2) B (b)
Mr. LEE Shu Kuan 6,370,229 247,406,800 253,777,029 51.53%
g e note (a), (b),
(e) & ()
COIONUN
(e) Je(f)
Mr. WONG Ho Lung, 420,000 1,511,050 1,931,050 0.39%
Danny note (c)
wE WFRE o)
Miss WONG Lan Sze, 232,000 1,511,050 1,743,050 0.35%
Nancy note (c)

B/ MA BERE (c)



DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES (Continued)

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the

Company: (Continued)
Note (a)

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, Mr. TSE Moon Chuen, Mr. CHAN Wai, Mr. LEE
Shu Kuan and Mr. WONG Koon Cheung were also directors, and together
with their associates collectively controlled over one-half of the voting
power, of Luk Fook (Control) Limited which held 234,185,672 shares in the
Company. These directors were deemed to be interested in the same shares,
relevant disclosures were therefore duplicated for the purpose of SFO.

Note (b)

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, Mr. TSE Moon Chuen, Mr. CHAN Wai, Mr. LEE
Shu Kuan and Mr. WONG Koon Cheung were also directors, and together
with their associates collectively controlled over one-third of the voting
power, of Dragon King Investment Ltd. which held 10,634,504 shares in the
Company. These directors were deemed to be interested in the same shares,
relevant disclosures were therefore duplicated for the purpose of SFO.

Note (c)

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, Ms. LUK Chui Yee, Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny
and Miss WONG Lan Sze, Nancy were discretionary beneficiaries of the
WONG’s Family Trust (the “Trust”). The Trust was the beneficial owner of
the entire issued share capital of Kwai Kee Cheung Jewellery & Goldsmith
Company Limited which was the beneficial owner of 1,511,050 shares of the
Company.

Note (d)

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung’s spouse, Ms. LUK Chui Yee, held 320,000 shares
of the Company.

Note (e)

Mr. LEE Shu Kuan held 33.3% of the entire issued share capital of Wah
Hang Kimon Investments Limited which in turn held 630,624 shares of the
Company.

Note (f)
Mr. LEE Shu Kuan held 51% of the entire issued share capital of Wah

Hang Kimon Holdings Limited which in turn held 1,956,000 shares of the
Company.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT BB 2R R &)
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES (Continued)

II.  Long positions in shares and underlying shares of Luk .  JAEAERAG AR ARA

Fook (Control) Limited, the ultimate holding company a0y A B IR 2 08
Beneficial Controlled Beneficiary Total % of
Name of Director Owner Spouse  Corporation of Trust Interest Shares
[ 3 3% HaHAA M ZEEEM fAREREA BERAAR BRI
Mr. WONG Wai Sheung 6,086,126 36,724,007 42,810,133 42.81%
Wl etk note (a)
By 3E (a)
Mr. TSE Moon Chuen 406,556 82,853 489,409 0.49%
iR e note(b)
B 3L (b)
Mr. LAU Kwok Sum 1,600 1,600 0.002%
BB AR
Mr. WONG Koon Cheung 4,585,920 4,585,920 4.59%
O e note (c)
Bt EE (o)
Mr. CHAN Wai 6,639,130 6,639,130 6.64%
PR E
Mr. LEE Shu Kuan 7,291,338 1,093,575 8,384,913 8.38%
B bR note (d)
Wk (d)
Miss YEUNG Po Ling, 60,000 60,000 0.06%
Pauline
B E/MI
Mr WONG Ho Lung, 36,724,007 36,724,007 36.72%
Danny note (a)
HIGTE e W3k (a)
Miss WONG Lan Sze, 36,724,007 36,724,007 36.72%
Nancy note (a)

B/ M W5k (a)



DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES (Continued)

II.

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of Luk

Fook (Control) Limited, the ultimate holding company
(Continued)
Note (a)

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, Ms. LUK Chui Yee, Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny
and Miss WONG Lan Sze, Nancy were discretionary beneficiaries of the
WONG’s Family Trust (the ‘Trust”). The Trust was the beneficial owner of
the entire issued share capital of Kwai Kee Cheung Jewellery & Goldsmith
Company Limited which was the beneficial owner of 36,724,007 shares of
Luk Fook (Control) Limited.

Note (b)

Mr. TSE Moon Chuen’s spouse, Ms. FONG Anissa King, held 82,853 shares
of Luk Fook (Control) Limited.

Note (c)

Mr. WONG Koon Cheung together his spouse, Ms. SO Lai Sheung,
controlled the entire issued share capital of WKC Investments Limited which
in turn held 4,585,920 shares of Luk Fook (Control) Limited.

Note (d)

Mr. LEE Shu Kuan held 33.3% of the entire issued share capital of Wah Hang

Kimon Investments Limited which in turn held 1,093,575 shares of Luk Fook
(Control) Limited.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31st March 2010, save as disclosed below, so far as is known to any
director or chief executive of the Company, no person, other than a director or
chief executive of the Company, had an interest or short position in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

EL-J e

201043 A 31 H » B R SRR E SN > SRR
AT o s EBATEN BTN - BRASA A R
SCEEATEN B AL MR A A A AR A W R
BBy > HEA MRS I SO B 15 XV
HREE 2 Je 3 AR n AN A 4 7 2 HEAR SR AT o

Controlled Total
Name of Shareholder Beneficial Owner Corporation Interest % of Shares
JBe R 44 W6 EaHa A Sy E WA m  fpra ol
Luk Fook (Control) Limited 234,185,672 234,185,672 47.55%
A (BERL) A BRAF]
First State Investments (Hong Kong) Limited 33,920,000 33,920,000 6.89%
note(a)
B &E (a)
Commonwealth Bank of Australia 33,920,000 33,920,000 6.89%
note (a)
Mk (a)
Note (a) 5T (a)

Commonwealth Bank of Australia was a 100% indirect controlling shareholder of First
State Investments (Hong Kong) Limited (“FSHK”). In turn, FSHK held 33,920,000
shares of the Company in the capacity as investment manager. By virtue of the SFO,
Commonwealth Bank of Australia was deemed to be interested in those shares of the
Company and relevant disclosures were therefore duplicated.

Commonwealth Bank of Australia 2 First State
Investments (Hong Kong) Limited ([FSHK ) 2= #F
it 2 ] 1 48 B B R o T FSHIK DA 38 ¥ 468 8 By 5 5
33,920,000 I A< 2% W) JBE By o AR RE S K BT R A
Commonwealth Bank of Australia B #5 /2 i 7% 55 48 /A & i
Iy R > SO VE R -



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

A

The directors submit their report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31st March 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the retailing and wholesaling of gold jewellery and

gold ornaments, gem-set jewellery and gemstones, and other accessory items.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by operating segment is

set out in note 6 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated income
statement on page 56.

The directors have declared an interim dividend of HK15 cents per ordinary
share, totalling HK$73,876,000, which was paid on 14th January 2010.

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK28 cents per
ordinary share, totalling HK$137,902,000 and payable on 13th September
2010.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during the year

are set out in note 28 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movement in property, plant and equipment of the Group are

set out in note 17 to the financial statements.

DONATIONS

Donations made by the Group during the year amounted to approximately
HK$399,000 (2009: HK$743,000).
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
WA

SHARE CAPITAL JBe A

AR R AR 2 S Y R TS B R B 5 27

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out in note

27 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES w2 UR 6l

PR A FE A RNEGTE » A2A R 20104F3 A 31
H 2z AT IR 845 5 479,169,000 #5 7T (2009 4F -
412,557,000 #IC) ©

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31st March 2010, calculated under
the Companies Act of Bermuda, amounted to HK$479,169,000 (2009:
HK$412,557,000).

AR B B R

AGEEEE 3 A 31 F k3 F AR B A A 2
SR HERAMWT

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for each of the last five financial

years ended 31st March are as follows:

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$°000 HK$°000 HKS$°000
THT T T THsIC T T RRLN
Restated Restated Restated Restated
S| KEE S S S
Results E3
Revenue A 2,163,114 2,903,742 3,455,471 3,959,227 5,386,432
Profit attributable to RANFIRERS TR A N
equity holders of JARE A 35
the Company 95,695 198,059 313,989 275,160 531,632
Assets and liabilities yif ), &=L
Total assets HEE 898,941 1,120,029 1,706,004 1,754,445 2,600,941
Total liabilities Ak 170,749 257,144 607,639 481,218 913,660
Shareholders’ funds R E 4 715,164 850,096 1,082,316 1,255,570 1,664,336

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF

SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year. Neither

the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the

Company’s shares during the year.
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DIRECTORS

The directors during the year were:

Executive Directors
Mr. WONG Wai Sheung (Chief Executive)

Mr. TSE Moon Chuen

Mr. LAW Tim Fuk, Paul

Mr. LAU Kwok Sum

Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny
Miss WONG Lan Sze, Nancy

Non-executive Directors
Mr. WONG Koon Cheung

Mr. CHAN Wai

Mr. LEE Shu Kuan

Miss YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline
Mr. HUI King Wai

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. HUI Chiu Chung, JP

Mr. LO Mun Lam, Raymond (Chairman)
Mr. TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander

Pursuant to Bye-law 99 of the Bye-laws, one-third of the Directors shall
retire from office by rotation at each annual general meeting of the Company.
Accordingly, Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, Mr. TSE Moon Chuen, Miss
YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline, Mr. HUI King Wai and Mr. LO Mun Lam,
Raymond shall retire by rotation at the next annual general meeting. All
retiring Directors are eligible for re-election. Details of the proposed directors

to be re-elected are set out in the Circular sent together with this annual report.

By an ordinary resolution passed at the Annual General Meeting held on 31st
August 2009, the Board was authorized to appoint additional directors up to

a maximum of 20 directors.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
WA

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors
Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, aged 60, is the founder and Chief Executive of

the Group. He is also a member of the Remuneration Committee. He has
over 43 years of experience in the Hong Kong jewellery industry and is
responsible for the overall strategic planning and management of the Group.
Mr. Wong has been appointed as the Associate Director of The Kowloon
Gold Silver and Jewel Merchant’s Staff Association since November 1993.
He has also been the Honorary Permanent Chairman of Jadeware Traders
Industry & Commerce Association and Chairman of Supervisory Committee
of Kowloon Jewellers” and Goldsmiths’ Association since 2001. He was
also elected as the Honorary Chairman of Macau Goldsmith’s Guild in 2005
and appointed as the Honorary Chairman of the First General Committee of
Guangdong Golden Jewelry and Jade Industry’s Association in 2006. Mr.
Wong was invited to be the Honorary Vice-president of the Fourth Council
Gemological Association of China, Gems & Jewelry Trade Association of
China in 2007. He has also been elected as a member of Hong Kong Trade
Development Council Jewellery Advisory Committee and QTSA Governing
Council (Retailer Category) and elected member of General Committee

of Hong Kong Brand Development Council in 2008. Besides, he is also

a member of the Guangzhou Huadu District Municipal Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference. He is the father of Mr.
Wong Ho Lung, Danny and Miss Wong Lan Sze, Nancy, Directors of the
Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)
Mr. TSE Moon Chuen, aged 60, is the co-founder of the Group. Presently, he

is the Director & Group Deputy General Manager and also a member of the
Remuneration Committee. He has over 37 years of experience in jewellery
retailing business and is responsible for the sales operations and administration
of the Group’s retail shops. He has been appointed to various positions

over the years including: an executive committee member of the Diamond
Federation of Hong Kong, China Ltd. since 2000; an alternate committee
member of the Chinese Gold & Silver Exchange Society since July 2004 and
the Vice-Chairman of Kowloon Pearls, Precious Stones, Jade, Gold and Silver
Ornament Merchants Association since 2005. Moreover, he was the Vice-
President of Hong Kong Tsuen Wan Industries and Commerce Association
Limited for 10 years and was elected as the Chairman of the fifth session in
2006; executive committee member of the Tsuen Wan Trade Association
Limited since 1996 and was appointed as a co-opted member of the Tsuen
Wan District Council, Industry & Commerce Committee in 1997 for a 10-year
term. He is also a committee member of the Tsuen Wan District Fight Crime
Committee since 2003 and the Vice-Chairman of the Tsuen Wan District
Economy Promotion Committee from the year 2005 to 2007. Mr. Tse was
appointed as the Chairman of the Tsuen Wan Festival Lightings Organizing
Committee for 7 consecutive years between 1999 and 2005 and became the
Vice President in 2006. He also served as the honorable President of the 32nd
session of Hong Kong Kwun Tong Junior Police Call in the same year. On
Ist July 2006, Mr. Tse was awarded the “Chief Executive’s Commendation
for Community Service” by the Government of the Hong Kong SAR. He is
also currently a Vice Chairman of Macau Goldsmiths Guild. Mr. Tse was
also appointed as the Honorary President of Shatin Livelihood Concern

Association and Cheung Ching Friends Association in 2009.

Mr. LAW Tim Fuk, Paul, aged 57, joined the Group in 1996. Presently, he
is a Director, Company Secretary and Financial Controller of the Group.
He is a member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, the
Chartered Institute of Management Accountants, the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators. Mr. Law holds a Bachelor’s Degree with honours in
Accountancy. He has over 16 years of accounting and auditing experience
and over 19 years of experience in commerce. He is mainly responsible for
the accounting and finance of the Group. He also handles communication

with institutional investors and financial reporters.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
WA

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)
Mr. LAU Kwok Sum, aged 68, joined the Group as a Branch Manager in

1995. Presently, he is a Director & Zone Manager (Yau Tsim Mong District).
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Lau worked as a regional manager in a
listed jewellery company in Hong Kong. Mr. Lau has more than 40 years of
experience in retailing, purchasing and wholesaling of jewellery products.

Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny, aged 33, is the Director and Operations
Manager of the Group. He joined the Group in 2002 and is responsible for
the execution and implementation of the Group’s operation directions and
strategies and actively participates in management information systems
including hardware integration and software development. He is also in
charge of the Group’s image rebranding and the design of its retail outlets.
With rich overseas experiences and background, Mr. Wong is principally
responsible for the design and establishment of the Group’s branches

in Hong Kong, Macau, China, USA and Canada. Mr. Wong is also an
active participant in the community and is currently a member of the

Sihui Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference; Permanent President of Sze Wui and Kwong Ning Clansman’s
Association (Hong Kong) Limited; Honorary President of Junior Police
Call of Kwai Tsing District; Honorary President of Kwai Tsing Fire Safety
Ambassador; Vice-president of the Executive Committee of Shamshuipo
Council For the Promotion of Cultural & Recreational Services Ltd; Member
of Sham Shui Po East Area Committee of Sham Shui Po District Office; and
Member of Sham Shui Po Commercial & Industrial Liaison Committee. In
2009, Mr. Wong received the GIA Diamonds Graduate title. He is the son of
Mr. Wong Wai Sheung, the Group’s Chief Executive and the brother of Miss
Wong Lan Sze, Nancy, Director of the Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)
Miss WONG Lan Sze, Nancy, aged 30, is the Director and Assistant

Business Manager of the Group. She joined the Group in 2006 and assists
in formulating and implementing the Group’s overall business strategies.
She is also responsible for the execution of the Group’s marketing policies.
Miss Wong holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Commerce from the University
of Toronto, Canada, and is a Certified Public Accountant of the United
States of America. Prior to joining the Group, Miss WONG worked for

an international professional accountants’ firm in Hong Kong, where she
performed auditing and accounting assignments for a variety of business
organizations including listed companies. She received the GIA Diamonds
Graduate title in 2007. She is the daughter of Mr. Wong Wai Sheung, the
Group’s Chief Executive and the sister of Mr. Wong Ho Lung, Danny,
Director of the Company.

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. WONG Koon Cheung, aged 77, has over 58 years of experience in
retailing and manufacturing of jewellery in Hong Kong. He joined the Group
in 1992.

Mr. CHAN Wai, aged 80, has over 63 years of experience in retailing and
manufacturing of jewellery in Hong Kong. He joined the Group in 1992.

Mr. LEE Shu Kuan, aged 83, has over 43 years of experience in property
development in Hong Kong. He joined the Group in 1991.

Miss YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline, aged 43, is the co-founder of the Group. Miss
Yeung has over 22 years of experience in public relations. Miss Yeung was
the winner of Miss Hong Kong and Miss International of Goodwill in 1987,
and also the 4 Runner-up of Miss Universe and Queen of Asia in 1988. Miss
Yeung was also the president of the Wai Yin Club for the year 1995-1996.
She received GIA Diamonds Graduate in 2005.

Mr. HUI King Wai, aged 60, is a solicitor practising in Hong Kong and joined
the Group in 1999. He was admitted the solicitor of the Supreme Court of
England and Wales and of the Supreme Court of Hong Kong in 1981 and
1982 respectively.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
WA

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

HUI Chiu-chung, Stephen JP, aged 63, joined the Group in 1997 and is

the Chairman of Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee. He is also the Chief Executive Officer of OSK Holdings Hong
Kong Limited and has 39 years of experience in the securities and investment
industry. Mr Hui had for years been serving as a Council Member and Vice
Chairman of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong, member of the Advisory
Committee of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Commission, Director
of the Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited, a member of the
Listing Committee of the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited, an
appointed member of the Securities and Futures Appeal Tribunal, and was
also a member of Standing Committee on Company Law Reform. Mr. Hui
was appointed by the Government of the HKSAR a Justice of the Peace in
2004 and was also appointed a member of the Zhuhai Municipal Committee
of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference in 2006. He is at
present a member of the Committee on Real Estate Investment Trusts of the
Hong Kong Securities and Futures Commission. Mr. Hui is also an appointed
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
Investigation Panel A and member of Government “Appointees”
(independent member) of Appeal Panel of the Travel Industry Council of
Hong Kong. Mr. Hui also serves as independent non-executive director

of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited, Chun Wo Development
Holdings Limited, Jiuzhou Development Company Limited, Lifestyle
International Holdings Limited and Frasers Property (China) Limited whose

shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Independent Non-Executive Directors (Continued)
Mr. LO Mun Lam, Raymond, aged 57, joined the Group since 2004. He was

elected Chairman of the Board on 12th April 2005 and is the Chairman of
the Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee. Mr.
Lo is the Chairman of a private equity firm with interest in various business
sectors. He had previously served as advisor, director and financial strategist
in many multidisciplinary listed and major companies. Professionally, Mr.
Lo is a fellow member and a Corporate Finance Designate of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England & Wales, a Counselor of Real Estate, USA
and a fellow member of the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors, UK. He is
also a member of the International Bar Association and a Certified Hospitality
Educator. Mr. Lo is currently director of two other listed companies in Hong
Kong.

Mr. TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander aged 52, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director, and a member of both the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee, of the Company with effect
from 24th July 2008. Mr. TAI graduated from Victoria University of
Wellington in New Zealand with a degree in Bachelor of Commerce and
Administration in 1982 and became an associate member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants in 1983. Mr. TAI has extensive
accountancy, corporate finance and investment experience in Hong Kong
and overseas. Mr. TAI is a shareholder and an executive director of Access
Capital Limited, a licensed corporation under the SFO to conduct Type 1
(dealing in securities), Type 4 (advising on securities), Type 6 (advising
on corporate finance) and Type 9 (asset management) regulated activities.
Mr. TAl is also an independent non-executive director of Honghua Group
Limited (Stock Code: 196) listed in Hong Kong.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
WA

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Senior Management
Mr. AU Kwok Kau, aged 61, is the co-founder and was the General Manager

of the Group since 1992. He has become the Group General Manager since
2007. Mr Au is responsible for overall administration of the Group. He has

over 38 years of experience in the jewellery industry in Hong Kong.

Miss Irene CHEUNG, aged 33, is the Legal Affairs Manager of the Group.
She holds a Bachelor’s of Arts Degree from the University of Toronto and
a Law Degree from Osgoode Hall of Canada. She was admitted as solicitor
and barrister in Ontario, Canada in 2003, where she practised Commercial
and Family Law. She joined the Group in 2005 and is responsible for the
administration and coordination of the Group’s legal affairs. Miss Cheung
is currently a member of the Law Society of Upper Canada and an associate
member of the Law Society of Hong Kong. She is the daughter-in-law of
Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, the Group’s Chief Executive and the spouse of Mr.
WONG Ho Lung, Danny, Director of the Company.

Miss CHUNG Vai Ping, Icy, 40, is the Senior Product Development Manager
of the Group. She has over 20 years experience in jewellery industry.

She joined the Group in 1990 and is mainly responsible for the product
development, jewellery purchasing, wholesaling and retailing business of
the Group. Ms. Chung frequently visits the jewellery exhibitions worldwide
for product exploration and sourcing the finest jewellery and jewellery

parts for the Group. In 2001, she has won the Best of Show Award with her
design “Flashing” in the 2nd Hong Kong Jewellery Design Competition. She
received the GIA Diamonds Graduate title in 2004.

Mr. FUNG Chi Ming, Fergus, aged 56, joined the Group in 2004 as Senior
Manager in Administration and Human Resources, he was redesignated

in 2009 as Senior General Affairs Manager with prime responsibility for
the Group’s shop decoration and engineering works. Mr. Fung obtained a
Master’s Degree in Business Administration and a Bachelor’s Degree in
Social Science through education in Hong Kong. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Fung has acquired extensive experience in human resources, business
and project management in various industries and also has substantial

exposure for operations in Hong Kong and China.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Senior Management (Continued)
Mr. LEUNG Tak Fai, Kelvin, aged 47, joined the Group as Internal Audit

Manager since 2002. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
the Information Systems Audit and Control Association. Being a Certified
Information Systems Auditor, he holds a Master’s Degree in Business
Administration. He has over 17 years of internal auditing experience.

Miss LEUNG Wai Sheung, Garry, aged 42, is the Corporate Affairs Manager
of the Group. She holds a professional Diploma in China Economy and
Finance, a Bachelor’s Degree in Business Administration and a Master’s
Degree in Business Administration. She joined the Group in 1994 and is
responsible for the Group’s coordination of project development, corporate
affairs, company secretarial matters and corporate communications. She

is a member of the Youth Committee of the Federation of Hong Kong

Guangdong Community Organizations Limited.

Miss LI Wai Ki, Vickie, aged 54, is the Jewellery Design Director of the
Group. She joined the Group in 1996 and is responsible for product design
and development. Miss Li has over 33 years of experience in jewellery
design. She won several international design awards including the 1st Greater
China Trophy For International Jadeite Jewellery Design Competition —
Premium Award, the 3rd, 4th and 5th Tahitian Pearl Trophy Asia Brooch

& Parure Category-Champion Award. And “Colourful World”, the brooch
designed by Miss Li, has won two top awards in the 9th Hong Kong
Jewellery Design Competition, including the Best of Show Award and the
Craftsmanship & Technology Award.

Dr. LING Hay Ming, Derek, aged 43, joined the Group in 2001 as I.T.
Manager and the Project Manager of Jewellworld.com Limited, a subsidiary
of the Company. He obtained his Master’s Degree in Business Administration,
Bachelor’s Degree in Computer Engineering from Santa Clara University in
California, U.S.A and his Doctor’s Degree in Business Administration from
The University of Newcastle in Australia. Prior to joining the Group, Dr.
Ling had over 11 years of business consulting and management experience in
U.S.A. and Hong Kong. He is at present the Vice President, HK Men’s Team
Captain, Chairman of Coaches Development Committee and Development
Committee, Committee Member of Tournament Committee, Elite Committee,
League Management Committee and Education & Qualifications Committee

of Hong Kong Tennis Association.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Senior Management (Continued)
Mr. TSANG Wai Hong, aged 43, joined the Group in 2006 as Senior Project

Manager and is responsible for the system development management. He
received a Master’s Degree in E-commerce and Internet Computing and a
Bachelor’s Degree in Computer Studies from the University of Hong Kong.
Mr. Tsang has over 17 years of experience in information technology and

management.

Mr. TSUI Kin Wah, Tommy, aged 52, is the Laboratory Director of the
Group. Mr. Tsui joined the Group in 1995 and has over 20 years of experience
in purchasing and gemstone identification. Mr. Tsui is an Executive
Committee Member of the Hong Kong Gemological Association and a
fellow member of Gemological Association of Great Britain. Besides, Mr.
Tsui is a laboratory representative and approved signatory under the Hong
Kong Laboratory Accreditation Scheme. At June 2007, Mr. Tsui has been
appointed by Hong Kong Council for Academic Accreditation as a Sector/

Subject Specialist for a 3-year period.

Miss WONG Hau Yeung, Shirley, aged 38, is the Group Deputy General
Manager of the Group. Miss Wong joined the Group in 2004 and is
responsible for the development and operation management for the business
in the Mainland and co-ordinates human resources management and training.
She received a Master’s Degree in Business Administration from University
of Southern Queensland. Besides, Miss Wong is the fellow of the Institute of
Global Managers, the Chartered Human Resources Consultant of Chartered
Association of Business Administrator. She has over 16 years of experience

in the jewellery industry in Hong Kong.

Mr. WONG Wai Tong, Samuel, aged 49, joined the Group in 1998. Presently,
he is the Business Director. He has over 33 years of manufacturing and
purchasing experience in jewellery and gold industry. He is responsible for
the purchasing of diamonds, gems and gold products of the Group and the
operation of the Company. Mr. Wong is the brother of Mr. WONG Wai
Sheung, Chief Executive of the Group.
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RETIREMENT SCHEME

Details of the retirement scheme operated by the Group are set out in note 3(r)

to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors’ service contracts requires the Company to give a
period of notice of more than one year or to pay compensation or make
other payments equivalent to more than one year’s emoluments (other than
statutory compensation). Pursuant to the Bye-laws, one-third of the Directors
shall retire from office by rotation at each annual general meeting of the

Company.

The fees and other emoluments of Directors are determined by reference
to industry norm and market conditions, with discretionary bonus on

performance awarded to Executive Directors.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 34 to the financial statements, no other contracts

of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company, its
subsidiaries or its holding company was a party, and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at

the end of the year or at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or

existed during the year.
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Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 75442 [H] (B [#%) A BR/2#]

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
WA

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions entered into by the Group during the year
ended 31st March 2010 as disclosed in note 34(b), (¢) & (d) to the financial
statements do not constitute connected transactions under the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”).

The related party transaction, which also constitutes a connected transaction
under the Listing Rules, is set out in note 34(a) to the financial statements and
disclosed in accordance with the Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules as follows:

The connected transaction in respect of the tenancy agreement entered into
with Mr. WONG Wai Sheung’s father, for the lease of a retail shop of the
Group was, in the opinion of the directors, entered into on normal commercial
terms which are fair and reasonable so far as the shareholders of the Company

are concerned.

DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS FROM RIGHTS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, its subsidiaries or its holding
company a party to any arrangement to enable the directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,

the Company or any other body corporate.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS

During the year under review, the percentages of sales for the year attributable

to the Group’s major customers are as follows:
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2010 2009
The largest customer BREF 10.1% 10.5%
Five largest customers combined TABRREF G5 13.0% 12.3%

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders (which to the
knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share

capital) had interest in the major customers noted above.
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases for the year attributable to the Group’s major

suppliers are as follows:
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2010 2009
The largest supplier IR AL 23.3% 20.7%
Five largest suppliers combined A R AR 43.6% 49.7%

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders (which to the
knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share

capital) had interest in the major suppliers noted above.

BANK LOANS, OVERDRAFTS AND OTHER
BORROWINGS

At 31st March 2010, the Group had bank loans, overdrafts or
other borrowings totalling approximately HK$314,000,000 (2009:
HK$169,000,000).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-
laws although there are no restrictions against such rights under the laws of

Bermuda.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE ON
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES OF
THE LISTING RULES

Throughout the year, the Company was in compliance with the Code on

Corporate Governance Practices as set out in the Listing Rules.

FEER P IR L e R R T A AL
A 5% DL BB ZALATBEOR - MEMEHEA bodt T2
PERER 2 i o

BUT R - B R I AY £

20103 H31 H » A £ HE A %314,000,000
5 T6 2 SRAT B K i 3 Ek H A £ B (2009 4F
169,000,000 #57C) ©

B S s

AR ) 2% ) A0 S SIE A A R 8 O R R AL
SE o M RE IR DI R R S AR )

S Bl BN Z A SRR RS

AR > AT — BT LTI P 2E A
HHEBLFAL -



Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 75442 [H] (B [#%) A BR/2#]

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
WA

AUDIT COMMITTEE

In compliance with paragraph 14 of the Code of Best Practice (applicable
before 1st January 2005), the Board has established an audit committee
comprising all independent non-executive directors, to monitor the
accounting and financial reporting practices and internal control systems of
the Company. Since 1st April 2009, the audit committee has held several
meetings to consider matters including the 2009 annual report of the
Company, internal controls, the unaudited interim condensed consolidated
financial information for the six months ended 30th September 2009, the

2010 annual report of the Company and the Group’s IT control environment.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from 26th August
2010 to 31st August 2010, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for the final dividend,
all transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s Share Registrars in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, Rooms 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on 25th August 2010.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of its directors as at 20th July 2010, being the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of the annual report, the public float of shares in the
Company has remained above the minimum percentage required by The
Stock Exchange throughout the year.
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AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who

retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

By order of the Board,
LO Mun Lam, Raymond

Chairman

Hong Kong, 20th July 2010
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Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 75442 [H] (B [#%) A BR/2#]

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

188 S A Y i oy

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF LUK FOOK HOLDINGS
(INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Luk Fook Holdings
(International) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,

the “Group”) set out on pages 56 to 139, which comprise the consolidated
and company balance sheets as at 3 1st March 2010, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the true
and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements

of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates
that are reasonable in the circumstances.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks

of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31st March 2010
and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 20th July 2010
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Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7S#E4E [ (R [4%) A BR2 ]

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

A e AR

(For the year ended 31st March 2010)
(#F 201043 H 31 HIL4EHE)

2010 2009
Note HK$°000 HKS$°000
R THT TG
(Restated)
(FE31)
(Note 3(v))
(BE&E3(v))
Revenue A 6 5,386,432 3,959,227
Cost of sales BB A 9 (4,092,895) (3,085,275)
Gross profit SEv 1,293,537 873,952
Other income At A 7 43,850 28,232
Selling and distribution costs SHEE el T 9 (610,922) (519,354)
Administrative expenses 1T H 9 (69,413) (67,883)
Other (losses)/gains, net HAt (k518) it > B 8 (21,939) B
Operating profit el 635,113 318,391
Finance income AW 342 4,702
Finance costs 5 2 (3,548) (8,302)
Finance costs, net BIEs R > A 10 (3,206) (3,600)
Share of results of an associate JEAL — F WS\ T S5 20 2343 1,230
Profit before taxation B HIT Ve 1 634,250 316,021
Taxation BiIH 11 (97,540) (37,781)
Profit for the year AF A ¥ ) 536,710 278,240
Profit attributable to: JEAG A
Equity holders of the Company EN/NEIL T Z XS ZE DN 12 531,632 275,160
Minority interests DBURCRAE AR 5,078 3,080
536,710 278,240
Earnings per share for profit attributable to AR ARG A A
equity holders of the Company JRRE A i ) A 8 13
Basic HAR HK 107.9 cents HK 55.9 cents
107.9 Al 55.9 #sill
Diluted Wi HK 107.9 cents HK 55.9 cents
107.9 #il 55.9 #: A1l

Details of dividends payable to equity holders of the Company attributable to

the profit for the year are set out in Note 14.

The notes on pages 62 to 139 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

A7 2 BN AR

(For the year ended 31st March 2010)
(#F 201043 H 31 H L)

2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$°000
T#xT T
Profit for the year A N i A 536,710 278,240
Other comprehensive income/(loss): Hp 2wl (Ei8)
Exchange differences [ffE 53 25 4H 5,775 (747)
Surplus/(deficit) on revaluation Wz R
of properties, net of tax (fes#i) - BRBifs 4,546 97)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) AERHEAL A A (EHR) > BB
for the year, netoftax 10321 (844)
Total comprehensive income for the year ENETE LN 547,031 277,396
Attributable to: TN REL :
— Equity holders of the Company — AN REA A 541,743 274,218
— Minority interests — DR 5,288 3,178
Total comprehensive income for the year ENETE LN 547,031 277,396

The notes on pages 62 to 139 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7S#E4E [ (BRI [4%) A BRAS )

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

o B AR

(As at 31st March 2010)
(A 20104E3 A 31 H)

2010 2009
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
fiiE Tt Tt
ASSETS - 3
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W2 ~ 7 Kottt 17 167,684 107,621
Leasehold land and land use rights AR 4 et s A 18 232,041 17,318
Interests in an associate ﬁg*%ﬁﬁﬁ’% UNCIPA S 20 4,507 1,955
Trading licence 2 IR 1,080 1,080
Rental deposits HEAL S 21 31,411 25,907
Deferred tax assets R S JE 29 13,677 14,240
__________ 450,400 [0 168,121
Current assets /ﬁ@J glz
Inventories 22 1,735,964 1,218,880
Trade receivables EE}@ 24 73,806 37,081
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables %4 ?Eﬁﬁﬁlﬁﬁ LA RENSCHRTE 21 45,863 43,747
Amount due from an associate JEM— KW A ﬁt@a 20 7,962 6,491
Cash and cash equivalents fﬁ%&fﬁﬁiﬁg Y| 31 286,946 280,125
________ 2,150,541 [ 1,586,324
Total assets Fih=g3 2,600,941 1,754,445
EQUITY L.t
Capital and reserves attributable to AN FIRE R R AN EAG
the Company’s equity holders B KAt
Share capital EQZF“ 27(a) 49,250 49,250
Share premium JBE s 8 27(b) 58,884 58,884
Reserves GG 28(a) 1,418,300 1,088,335
Proposed dividends RS 14 137,902 59,101
" 1,664,336 1,255,570
Minority interests DBIRCRAEAR 22,945 17,657
Total equity WEasE 1,687,281 [ 1,273,227
LIABILITIES fif
Non-current liabilities T imdh A 5
Deferred tax liabilities ESERLTH AR 29 7,115 2,980
Employee benefit obligations & B A& | 5 AT 30 12,266 22,733
Long-term bank borrowings, secured RHASRITIE R > A 26 150,878 -
__________ 170259 | 25713
Current liabilities B
Trade payables, other payables and accruals EEV?NE@E ~ HoAth B A5 HRIF
_ St IR 25 530,434 258,699
Short-term bank borrowings, unsecured %ﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ‘é‘?}\ > JBEHEA 26 145,618 169,000
Current portion of long-term R HIERAT R R HAER 43 -
bank borrowings, secured ﬁ?ﬁﬁ' 26 17,204 -
Taxation payable JEATFLIE 50,145 27,806
__________ 743,401 R 499505
Total liabilities meas 913,660 481218
Total equity and liabilities W4 N B AR AR 2,600,941 1,754,445
Net current assets LB 1,407,140 1,130,819
Total assets less current liabilities AL OB A 1,857,540 1,298,940
WONG Wai Sheung TSE Moon Chuen
LR
Director Director
HF HF

The notes on pages 62 to 139 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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BALANCE SHEET

r A Rk

(As at 31st March 2010)
(A20104E3 H31 H)

2010 2009
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
R TH#T T
ASSETS ¥E
Non-current assets I i B
Investments in subsidiaries A R 2 BE 19 298,887 298,887
Current assets LB &
Amounts due from subsidiaries JRE VST i &g A ) AR TE 23 383,148 440,520
Prepayments FEAFIH 21 28 -
Cash and cash equivalents B4 NI & HEY) 31 569 1,208
383,745 441,728
Total assets HMERE 682,632 740,615
EQUITY HE2E
Capital and reserves AR R S
Share capital &N 27(a) 49,250 49,250
Share premium Je Ay i6 (B 27(b) 58,884 58,884
Reserves fitifhe 28(b) 341,267 353,456
Proposed dividends HEVRIBES, 14 137,902 59,101
587,303 520,691
LIABILITIES fafi
Current liabilities b=
Amounts due to subsidiaries JREAST B J 2 i) BRI 23 - 60,378
Other payables Al R AT HRIE 25 585 546
Short-term bank borrowings, unsecured SEIASRAT B > MEHEH 26 94,744 159,000
95,329 219,924
Total equity and liabilities WA S B AR AR 682,632 740,615
Net current assets JLEh A = R E 288,416 221,804
Total assets less current liabilities G W B B A 587,303 520,691
WONG Wai Sheung TSE Moon Chuen
W A
Director Director
#HH HH
The notes on pages 62 to 139 are an integral part of these consolidated SR622 139 MR RE A K55 BB R O B R )

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

B MR A 5 Wl ¢

(For the year ended 31st March 2010)
(#F 201043 H 31 HIL4EHE)

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

AR R AMEAY
Share Share Minority Total
capital  premium  Reserves Subtotal interests equity
54
B Bt i At RS MR
HKS$’000  HK$°000  HK$000  HKS$000  HKS$000  HKS$000
T T T T T T
(Note 28(a))
(Ht7E28(a))
For the year ended RE20104:3 4311
31st March 2010 AR
As at Ist April 2009 #20094E4 A 1H 49,250 58,884  1,147436 1,255,570 17,657 1,273,227
Comprehensive income ZWBA
Profit for the year el 2l - - 531,632 531,632 5,078 536,710
Other comprehensive income b 2w
Exchange differences [ i, 2258 - - 5,565 5,565 210 5,775
Surplus on revaluation of properties W B - - 5,430 5,430 - 5,430
Deferred tax arising from surplus WEZ ERBREEZ
on revaluation of properties (Note 29) IRAERUIA ([ft:k29) - - (884) (884) - (884)
Total other comprehensive income HipzmapA - -l o1 20 10,321
Total comprehensive income ZHBOA - - 541,743 541,743 5,288 547,031
Transactions with owners L Ve EPE Y]
Dividends paid erRE - .- a9y (391 - (132977)
As at 31st March 2010 JA20104E3 31 H 49,250 58884 1,556,202 1,664,336 22,945 1,687,281
For the year ended 2200943 H31H
31st March 2009 AR
As at 1st April 2008 #20084E4 A 1H 49,250 58,384 974,182 1,082,316 16,049 1,098,365
Comprehensive income ZBA
Profit for the year R R = - 275,160 275,160 3,080 278,240
Other comprehensive (loss)/income Jefb 2 Ol ), BN
Exchange differences b7 8 - = (845) (845) 98 (747)
Deficits on revaluation of properties W E Al = - 97) 97) - 97
Total other comprehensive (loss)/income ~ HALATHA (B5#8) /A - = () N ) IR (344)
Total comprehensive income ETE-LON - - 274218 274218 3,178 277,396
Transactions with owners R HZ RS
Liquidation of a subsidiary —Z A FER = - - - (1,570) (1,570)
Dividends paid EfTBE = —  (100,964)  (100,964) —  (100,964)
__________ Tz (100964)  (100,964) ___(1,570) __(102,534)
As at 31st March 2009 200943 A 31 H 49,250 58,884 1147436 1,255,570 17,657 1,273,227

The notes on pages 62 to 139 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

i Bl R

(For the year ended 31st March 2010)
(#F 201043 H 31 H L)

Annual Report 2010 43

2010 2009
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
R T#IL T
Cash flows from operating activities ) 2 B
Net cash generated from operations AR A B AR 32 381,914 387,795
Hong Kong profits tax paid AT E AR (42,852) (41,895)
Overseas income taxes paid EATIEANITRRL (28,535) (5,610)
Net cash generated from operating activities /278 { B 7 AE 2 B4 {F A 310,527 340,290
Cash flows from investing activities BB TG 2 B 4
Purchase of property, plant and equipment IS EWZE - WS Bkt
and payment for leasehold land DA R SCASAH B 3
and land use rights e b5 A (314,607) (29,702)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEYZE - R Kk
and equipment and leasehold land FAHE L b {52k IE 1,214 1,459
Interest received EL A 342 495
Net cash used in investing activities P T ) i ) B 4 v (313,051) (27,748)
Cash flows from financing activities PV ) 2 LA T
Proceeds from bank loans SRAT BRI S 2K 508,674 377,000
Repayment of bank loans fERRERA T B (363,974) (481,000)
Interest on bank loans SRIT R FILE 3,171) (8,302)
Dividends paid oA RS (132,977) (100,964)
Net cash generated from/(used in) RvE B L (T )
financing activities Blgww 8552 (213,266)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents Bl T B4 55 (B ) 2 B4 6,028 99,276
Cash and cash equivalents at 1st April R4 H 1 HZ B4 R BLE5EY) 280,125 185,380
Exchange differences e 5, 75 793 (4,531)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31st March W3H3 HZHERRE%EY 31 286,946 280,125

The notes on pages 62 to 139 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

bh 5 0 o B ek

GENERAL INFORMATION
Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited (the “Company’’) was

incorporated in Bermuda on 3rd September 1996 as a company with
limited liability under the Companies Act of Bermuda. The address
of its registered office is Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton
HM 12, Bermuda.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) are principally engaged in the retailing and wholesaling of
gold jewellery and gold ornaments, gem-set jewellery and gemstones
and other accessory items.

The Company’s shares are listed on the main board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”), unless otherwise stated, and have been approved for
issue by the board of directors on 20th July 2010.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS”). The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared under the historical cost convention except that certain
financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair value, as
appropriate.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving

a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements, are disclosed in Note 5.

— R ER

ANAE A () A FRA R (A4 H D i
19964F9 H 3 H £ F S RIE A 5 A T
R AL A RS A o ok i R R
Hihik £ Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street,
Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda °

AN m B B 2w (AR [ A SR ) &
TR MY - B0 R
£ LA R HAPE Al Z 45 KBRS o

A ) B Ay AE A v W 6 5 5 BT A R4~ ]
([Hgr2e i 1) AR L o

BR o5 A RO > IS AR A BB R 1
ot (Moo ) 251 > 362201047 A 20
H 38 = ar it i 1) 5% -

Bl LR e

A ) i S R R T AR 7 U P
R I (T A A5 et M L ) A R - B
T R R R R AT ERH R
(AN ) B - %56 S B ik R 1 R B0 AR
LSRR

i 5 BEL AT A U 4 P R — B
B R&EENE TRBGHERE - 5
I it B L 7 ) A4 T s BOR
AV o 9 Bl 2 ) B s 4 A 2
WS > s B LA AR B R T
J& R 2 W B S BeEE o
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

@

The following new standard, amendments to standards
and interpretation are mandatory for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1st April 2009.

HKAS 1 (Revised), “Presentation of Financial Statements”.
The revised standard requires “non-owner changes in
equity” to be presented separately from owner changes in
equity. As a result the Group presents all owner changes in
equity in the consolidated statement of changes in equity,
whereas all “non-owner changes in equity” are presented in
a performance statement.

Entities can choose whether to present one performance
statement (the statement of comprehensive income) or

two statements (the income statement and statement of
comprehensive income). The Group has elected to present
two statements: an income statement and a statement of
comprehensive income. These consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the revised disclosure
requirements. Since the change in accounting policy only
impacts presentation aspects, there is no impact on earnings
per share.

HKFRS 7 (Amendment), “Financial Instruments —
Disclosures”. The amendment requires enhanced
disclosures about fair value measurement and liquidity risk.
In particular, the amendment requires disclosure of fair
value measurements by level of a fair value measurement
hierarchy. As the change in accounting policy only results
in additional disclosures, there is no impact on earnings per
share.

HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments” — HKFRS 8 replaces
HKAS 14 “Segment Reporting”. The new standard
requires a “management approach”, under which segment
information is presented on the same basis as that used for
internal reporting purposes. In addition, the segments are
reported in a manner that is more consistent with the internal
reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.

The adoption of HKFRS 8 resulted in a change in the
number of reportable segments presented by the Group.
The reportable segments included “Retailing — Hong Kong,
Macau and overseas”, “Retailing — The People’s Republic
of China”, “Wholesaling” and “Licensing”. Comparative
information has been reclassified to conform with the current
year’s presentation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S e M ik

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 2 R ()

(b)  The following amendments to standards and interpretations (b) DL HE R 2 AETT R R R 2009
are also mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or 4E4H 1 Bz H 2 #iRs et
after Ist April 2009: HAMI AR
HKFRSs Improvements to HKFRSs 2008 BT 2008 47 ik A

(Amendment) R (57T 7) HEHERIZ
B O

HKFRS 1 and Cost of an investment in a subsidiary, it I HEE A i
HKAS 27 jointly controlled entity RS 158 R ~rl -~ 3R
(Amendments) A g et e e LAY

$279% WA
(7740
HKFRS 2 Share-based payment — vesting BB Rt 5F — B
(Amendment) conditions and cancellations HERIES 2 98 Rt Rk 8
(7T
HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing costs g TR A
23958 (%1537

HKAS 32 and Puttable financial instruments and T e e T B 4
HKAS 1 obligations arising on 532 5E R THRIE#®
(Amendments) liquidation EatERIE 15 JiT A 2 BT

(E7TA)

HK(IFRIC)-Int9  Reassessment of embedded il (RRMHRE  ASMELR
and HKAS 39 derivatives wRZEE) Xl
(Amendments) — RO K

A gTHEd
53998 (BRI A)
HK(IFRIC)-Int 13  Customer loyalty programmes U (PR IAT R BR RIS
iR 3-8 Gyl
— R fER 135
HK(IFRIC)-Int 15  Agreements for the construction of Al (RS FiEdE
real estate HRZEY) - fihae
AR 1598
HK(IFRIC)-Int 16  Hedges of a net investment in a itk (BB, BhgsERs
foreign operation iR = 3=8.9) ERa Rt L
— R 16 9%
HK(IFRIC)-Int 18  Transfers of assets from customers @ Ak (BBIHRE RABFZ
AREEE) EREEEe
— iR 18 %
® Effective for the Group for annual period beginning Ist (1) AL 200944 A 1 H B bA
April 2009 except the amendments to HKFRS 5, “Non- A B T AR o A v
current assets held for sale and discontinued operations” FER A e RIS 5 98 [ 3 fE e
which is effective for annual period beginning 1st April 2 ERE KB &I
2010. SRS ik 20104E4 H 1 H B
ZAEPERAI AL -
@ Effective for transfer of assets received on or after 1st July ) I EZAE B &P 2 & e
2009. 20094F7 H 1 HEZ AR -

The adoption of these amendments to standards and
interpretations did not result in a significant impact on the
results and financial position of the Group.

PRAR % 5 I 2 B RT Sk R
AR AR 2 SR A e S
ISV C NS 2



BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

The following standard, amendments to standards and
interpretations have been issued but are not effective for
2009 and have not been early adopted:

HKFRSs
(Amendment)

Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 @

HKFRS 1 (Revised) First-time adoption of HKFRSs

HKFRS 1 Additional exemptions for first-time
(Amendment) adopters

HKEFRS 2 Group cash-settled share-based
(Amendment) payment transactions

HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business combinations
HKFRS 9 Financial instruments ©
HKAS 24 (Revised) Related party disclosures @

HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and separate financial
statements

HKAS 32 Classification of right issues
(Amendment)

HKAS 39 Eligible hedged items
(Amendment)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14  Prepayments of a minimum funding
(Amendment) requirement

HK(IFRIC)-Int 17  Distributions of non-cash assets to

owners

HK(IFRIC)-Int 19  Extinguishing financial liabilities with

equity instruments

L) Effective for the Group for annual period beginning on 1st

April 2010

@ Effective for the Group for annual period beginning on 1st
April 2011

® Effective for the Group for annual period beginning on 1st

April 2013
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Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7S#E4E [ (BRI [4%) A BRAS )

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S e M ik

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

©

The adoption of HKFRS 3 (Revised) and HKAS 27
(Revised) might have impact on the results and financial
position of the Group, depending on the incidence and timing
of business combinations occurring on or after 1st April
2010. The directors anticipate that the adoption of other
standard, amendments to standards and interpretations will
not result in a significant impact on the results and financial
position of the Group.

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless

otherwise stated.

(@)

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up
to 31st March.

@) Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group
has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies generally accompanying a shareholding of
more than one half of the voting rights. The existence
and effect of potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible are considered when
assessing whether the Group controls another entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

B VLI HE ()

(©)

PRAN T v A TS S 5 MR U 5 3 4% (4%
E5T) KA s Gt e B S 27 5% (4
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3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)

(@

(@

Subsidiaries (Continued)

The purchase method of accounting is used to
account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the
Group. The cost of an acquisition is measured as
the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments
issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the
date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable

to the acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date, irrespective of the
extent of any minority interests. The excess of the
cost of acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s
share of the identifiable net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less
than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired, including any contingent liabilities
assumed, the difference is recognised directly in the
consolidated income statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet, the investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for
impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.
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Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7S#E4E [ (BRI [4%) A BRAS )

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S e M ik

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a) Consolidation (Continued)

(ii)

(iif)

Transactions with minority interests

The Group applies a policy of treating transactions
of equity interest in a subsidiary with minority
interests as transactions with parties external to the
Group. Disposals of equity interest in a subsidiary
owned by the Group to minority interests result in
gains or losses for the Group are recorded in the
income statement. Purchases of equity interest in

a subsidiary not already owned by the Group from
minority interests result in goodwill, being the
difference between any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net
assets of the subsidiary.

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates
are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting and are initially recognised at cost. The
Group’s investment in associates includes goodwill
(net of any accumulated impairment loss) identified
on acquisition.

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-
acquisition profits or losses is recognised in the
income statement, and its share of post-acquisition
movements in reserves is recognised in reserves. The
cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted
against the carrying amount of the investment. When
the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals

or exceeds its interest in the associate, including
any other unsecured receivables, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(@

(b)

©

Consolidation (Continued)

(iii)  Associates (Continued)
Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the associates. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have been changed
when necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker,

who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified
as the board of directors that makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

@) Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented
in HKS, which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

(ii) Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the income statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

©

(@

Foreign currency translation (Continued) (c)
(ili)  Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group

entities (none of which has the currency of a hyper-

inflationary economy) that have a functional

currency different from the presentation currency are

translated into the presentation currency as follows:

@) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

?2) income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses
are translated at the rate on the dates of the
transactions); and

3) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised as a separate component of
equity.
Property, plant and equipment (d)

Buildings comprise retail shops and other properties such
as office premises. Retail shops are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. Properties other than retail shops (‘“Properties™) are
stated at valuation less subsequent accumulated depreciation.
The valuation, being fair value at the date of valuation, is
determined by the directors based on independent valuations
which are performed at least every three years. In the
intervening years, the directors review the carrying value of
the buildings and adjustment is made where there has been
a material change. Increases in valuation are credited to the
revaluation reserve in shareholders’ equity. Decreases in
valuation are first offset against previous increases of the
same property and are thereafter expensed in the income
statement. Each year the difference between depreciation
based on the revaluated carrying amount of the asset
expensed in the income statement and depreciation based
on the asset’s original cost is transferred from revaluation
reserve to retained earnings.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(@

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Buildings are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
unexpired period of leases or the expected useful lives of the
buildings to the Group, whichever is shorter.

Other tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Cost
includes the purchase price of the asset and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
expensed in the income statement during the financial period
in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis to write off
the cost less accumulated impairment losses of each asset

to their residual values over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

Leasehold improvements 20% or over the

unexpired lease
period, whichever is
shorter
Furniture and fixtures and 20%
computer equipment
Plant and machinery 20%
Motor vehicles 20%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 3(g)).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
net proceeds with carrying amount of the relevant assets and
are included in the income statement.

3
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S e M ik

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e

(®

(g

Leasehold land and land use rights

Leasehold land and land use rights are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses, (if any). Cost represents consideration paid for

the rights to use the land on which various plants and
buildings are generally situated for a period from 30 to 70
years. Amortisation of leasehold land and land use rights is
calculated on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

Trading licence

Trading licence with indefinite useful life represents a
membership in Chinese Gold and Silver Exchange Society
and is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries,
investment in an associate and non-financial
assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or have not yet been
available for use are not subject to amortisation/depreciation
and are at least tested annually for impairment. Assets are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not

be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units).

Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered

an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date. Where an impairment
loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
(cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount to the extent that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (cash-generating unit) in prior years.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately
in the income statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h) Inventories
Inventories represent merchandises and are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined
on the first-in, first-out basis. The cost of merchandise
comprises raw materials, direct labour and other direct costs.
It excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
applicable variable selling expenses.

(i)  Financial assets
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: at fair value through profit or loss and loans
and receivables. The classification depends on the purpose
for which the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of the Group’s financial assets
at initial recognition and re-evaluates this designation at
every reporting date.

i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are financial assets held for trading. A financial asset
is classified in this category if acquired principally
for the purpose of selling in the short term.
Derivatives are classified as held for trading unless
they are designated as hedges. Assets in this category
are classified as current assets.

(ii) Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included
in current assets, except for those with maturities
greater than 12 months after the balance sheet date
which are classified as non-current assets. Loans
and receivables include trade receivables, other
receivables, deposits, amount due from an associate,
amounts due from subsidiaries and cash and cash
equivalents.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

@) Financial assets (Continued)

(it)

Loans and receivables (Continued)

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date — the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried
at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially
recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are
expensed in the income statement. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the investments have expired or have
been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and
receivables are initially recognised at fair value

and subsequently carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any provision for
impairment.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of the “financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss” category are presented in the income statement
within other gains/losses, in the period in which
they arise. Dividend income from financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss is recognised in the
income statement as part of other income when the
Group’s right to receive payments is established.

The fair values of quoted investments are based on
current bid prices. If the market for a financial asset
is not active (and for unlisted securities), the Group
established fair value by using valuation techniques.
These include the use of recent arm’s length
transactions, reference to other instruments that are
substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis
and option pricing models, making maximum use
of market inputs and relying as little as possible on
entity-specific inputs.
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3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

1)

(k)

)]

Receivables 1))
Receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment. A provision
for impairment of receivables is established when there is
objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect
all amounts due according to the original term of receivables.
The amount of the provision is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest
rate. The carrying amount of the assets is reduced through
the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss
is recognised in the income statement within administrative
expenses. When a receivable is uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account for receivables. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against administrative expenses in the income statement.

Cash and cash equivalents (k)
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits

held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid

investments with original maturities of three months or less,

and bank overdrafts, if any.

Bank overdrafts, if any, are shown within borrowings in
current liabilities on the balance sheet.

Derivative financial instruments a
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at their fair values. The method of recognising
the resulting gains or losses depends on whether the
derivative is designated and qualified as a hedging
instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged.
Since the derivative financial instruments entered into by the
Group do not qualify for hedge accounting, changes in fair
value of any derivative financial instruments are recognised
immediately in the income statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S e M ik

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Financial liabilities and equity
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the
Group are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions
of a financial liability and an equity instrument. Financial
liabilities (including trade payables) are initially measured at
fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method. An equity instrument is
any contract that does not meet the definition of financial
liability and evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Group after deducting all of its liabilities.

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs,
net of tax, directly attributable to the issue of new shares are
shown in equity as a deduction from the proceeds.

(n) Financial guarantee contract liabilities
Financial guarantee contract liabilities are measured
initially at their fair values and are subsequently measured
at the higher of (i) the amount initially recognised less,
where appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised
in the income statement over the period of the relevant
liabilities and (ii) the amount of which the Group is obliged
to reimburse the recipient under the financial guarantee
contracts.

(o) Borrowings
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds
(net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in the income statement over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

®

@

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any
qualifying assets are capitalised during the period of time that
is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended
use. All other borrowing costs are charged to the income
statement in the period in which they are incurred.

Current and deferred income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis

of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date in the countries where the Group operates
and generates taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate
on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the relevant
tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes. However, the deferred income
tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of
an asset or a liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax
is determined using rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset
is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates
except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(r) Employee benefits
@) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

(ii) Profit sharing and bonus plans
Provisions for profit sharing and bonus plans are
recognised when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the
obligation can be made.

(iii)  Pension obligations
Hong Kong
The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) which is registered under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance in Hong
Kong. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held in a
separately administered fund. The MPF Scheme is
generally funded by payments from employees and
by the Group.

The Group’s contributions to the MPF Scheme

are expensed as incurred and are reduced by the
employer’s voluntary contribution forfeited from
the MPF Scheme by those employees who leave the
scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(r) Employee benefits (Continued)

(iif)

@iv)

Pension obligations (Continued)

The People’s Republic of China (“PRC”)

As stipulated by rules and regulations in the

PRC, the Group contributes to state-sponsored
retirement schemes for its relevant employees in
the PRC. The Group’s relevant employees make
monthly contributions to the schemes at 10% to
13% of the relevant income (comprising wages,
salaries, allowances and bonuses), while the Group
contributes 24% to 37% of such income and has no
further obligations for the actual payment of post-
retirement benefits beyond the contributions. The
state-sponsored retirement schemes are responsible
for the entire post-retirement benefit obligations
payable to the retired employees.

The Group’s contributions to the state-sponsored
retirement schemes are expensed as incurred and are
fully and immediately vested in the employees.

Long service payment

The Group’s net obligation in respect of lump

sum long service amounts payable on cessation

of employment in certain circumstances under the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance is the amount
of future benefit that employees have earned in
return for their service in the current and prior
periods. The obligation is calculated using the
projected unit credit method by a qualified actuary,
discounted to its present value, and the fair value of
any related plan assets is deducted. The discount rate
is the yield at balance sheet date on Exchange Fund
Notes that have maturity dates approximating the
terms of the Group’s obligations.

3
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s) Revenue and income recognition
Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sales of goods and services
in the ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is
shown net of value-added tax, sales returns and discounts,
after eliminated sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue
can be reliably measured and it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the Group. The amount of
revenue is not considered to be reliably measurable until all
contingencies relating to the sale have been resolved. The
Group bases its estimates on historical results, taking into
consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction
and the specifics of each arrangement. Revenue and income
are recognised as follows:

(i) Sales of goods — wholesales
Sales of goods are recognised when a group entity
has delivered products to the wholesaler, the
wholesaler has full discretion over the channel and
price to sell the products, and there is no unfulfilled
obligation that could affect the wholesaler’s
acceptance of the products. Delivery does not
occur until the products have been delivered to the
specified location, the risks of obsolescence and
loss have been transferred to the wholesaler, and
either the wholesaler has accepted the products
in accordance with sales contract, the acceptance
provisions have lapsed, or the Group has objective
evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been
satisfied.

(ii) Sales of goods — retail
Sales of goods are recognised when a group entity
sells a product to the customer. Retail sales are
usually in cash or by credit card. It is the Group’s
policy to sell its jewellery products to the end
customers with a right of return within one year
at a certain discount on the original selling price.
Accumulated experience is used to estimate and
provide for such returns at the time of sale.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue and income recognition (Continued)

®

®

(iii)

(v)

)

vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Royalty income in respect of the use of the Group’s
trademarks is recognised on an accrual basis in
accordance with the substance of the relevant
agreements.

Consultancy fee income and service income in
respect of technical support and consultancy
services are recognised in the period the services are
provided.

Rebate from import agents is recognised when
there is reasonable assurance that the rebate will
be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with.

Value-added tax refunds are recognised at their

fair values in the income statement when there is
reasonable assurance that the refund will be received
and all the attaching conditions will be complied
with.

Interest income from bank deposits is recognised on
a time proportion basis using the effective interest
method.

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the lease period.

Operating leases (as a leasee)
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards

of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as

operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net

of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to

the income statement on a straight-line basis over the period

of the lease. When a component of the lease payment which
is not fixed but is based on future amount of a factor, other
than with the passage of time, such as percentage of sales or
concessionaire fees, the amount is recognised as expenses as
it arises.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

™)

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the
Company’s shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

Comparative figures

In previous years, royalty income and consultancy fee
income were included in “other income” and their related
costs were included in “selling and distribution costs”

and “administrative expenses” in the consolidated income
statement. In preparing the consolidated financial statements
of the year ended 3 1st March 2010, management has
determined that such income and costs should be included
in “revenue” and “cost of sales” as they have been disclosed
as a separate reportable segment following the adoption of
HKEFRS 8. To conform with current year’s presentation,
“other income” of HK$102,243,000 for the year ended

31st March 2009 was reclassified to “revenue” and the
related “selling and distribution costs” and “administrative
expenses” of HK$46,210,000 and HK$112,000 respectively,
were reclassified to “cost of sales”.

4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(@)

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks,
including foreign exchange risk, cash flow and fair value
interest rate risks, credit risk, liquidity risk and commodity
price risk.

The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks

to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance. The Group uses derivative financial
instruments to manage certain risk exposures. The use

of financial derivatives to hedge certain risk exposures is
governed by the Group’s policies approved by the Board of
Directors of the Company.
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

@

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong with
most of the transactions settled in HK$. The
Group also has retail and wholesale operations in
the PRC, Macau, Canada and the United States,
of which foreign exchange risk is considered
insignificant. Foreign exchange risk arises when
future commercial transactions or recognised assets
or liabilities are denominated in a currency that is
not the entity’s functional currency. The Group

is exposed to foreign exchange risk from various
currency exposures, primarily with respect to
Renminbi (“RMB”) and the United States Dollars
(“US$”).

The Group manages its foreign exchange risk by
performing regular reviews of the Group’s net
foreign exchange exposures. The Group has not
entered into any forward foreign exchange contracts
to hedge its foreign exchange exposure as the
directors are of the view that the potential foreign
exchange exposures are not significant.

The Group’s assets and liabilities, and transactions
arising from its operations primarily do not expose
the Group to material foreign exchange risk.

The Group’s assets and liabilities are primarily
denominated in the respective group companies’
functional currency.

At 31st March 2010 and 2009, if RMB and US$ had
weakened/strengthened by 5% against HKS, with
all other variables held constant, profit for the year
would have been approximately HK$3,435,000 and
HK$473,000 higher/lower respectively.
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(it)

(iii)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates and the Group has no significant
interest-bearing assets and liabilities except for the
cash at bank and bank borrowings, details of which
have been disclosed in Notes 31 and 26. The Group’s
exposure to changes in interest rates is mainly
attributable to its borrowings. Borrowings carried at
floating rates expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk.

The Group used gold linked interest rate swap to
reduce its exposure to interest rate risks. Such gold
linked interest rate swap has the economic effect

of converting interest rate exposure into gold price
exposure. As at 31st March 2010, the notional value
of the outstanding interest rate swaps contracts
amounted to approximately HK$168,104,000
(2009: Nil).

At 31st March 2010, if the interest rates on bank
borrowings had been 50 basis points higher/

lower than the prevailing interest rates, with all
other variables held constant, post-tax profit for
the year would have been HK$1,043,000 (2009:
HKS$60,000) lower/higher, mainly as a result of
higher/lower interest expense on floating rate bank
borrowings.

Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of
credit risk. The carrying amounts of trade and other
receivables, deposits, amount due from an associate
and cash and cash equivalents included in the
consolidated balance sheet represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its
financial assets.
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iii)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group has policies in place to ensure that
sales of products on credit terms are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history and
the Group performs periodic credit evaluations of
its customers. The Group’s concessionaire sales
through department stores are generally collectible
within 30 days from the invoice date while credit
sales are generally on credit terms within 90 days.
Normally the Group does not require collaterals
from trade debtors. The existing debtors have

no significant defaults in the past. The Group’s
historical experience in collection of trade and other
receivables falls within the recorded allowances
and the directors are of the opinion that adequate
provision for uncollectible receivables, if any, has
been made.

The deposits, other receivables and amount due from
an associate are from counterparties with good credit
history. There is no history of defaults from these
counterparties.

As at 31st March 2010 and 2009, substantially all
the bank balances as detailed in Note 31 are held in
major financial institutions located in Hong Kong
and the PRC, which management believes are of
high credit quality. The Group has a policy to limit
the amount of credit exposure to any financial
institution and management does not expect any
losses arising from non-performance by these
counterparties.
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iv)

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents
and the availability of funding through an adequate
amount of committed credit facilities.

The Group’s primary cash requirements have been
for additions of and upgrades on property, plant and
equipment, payment on related debts and payment
for purchases and operating expenses. The Group
finances its working capital requirements through

a combination of internal resources and bank
borrowings, as necessary.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure it
maintains sufficient cash and cash equivalents and
has available funding through adequate amount
of committed credit facilities to meet its working
capital requirements.

The table below analyses the Group’s and the
Company’s financial liabilities into relevant
maturity groupings based on the remaining period
at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity
date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows based on the
earliest date on which the Group and the Company
can be required to pay.
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4  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 4 W85 BUBE 4 B ()
(a)  Financial risk factors (Continued) (a) B ELBEH #E (%)
(iv)  Liquidity risk (Continued) (iv) BB (4
Within Between 2 and Over
1 year S years S years Total
VER 2 80s4E 5 4E At
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
T T T THIT
Group S
As at 31st March 2010 201043 H31H
Trade payables, other payables & 5 EATHRIA » HAth
and accruals JREASF R IR K
Tt I 530,434 - - 530,434
Short-term bank borrowings SR TG 146,630 - - 146,630
Current portion of long-term FE IR T i SRR 2
bank borrowings 18,615 - - 18,615
Long-term bank borrowings ~ F=HST 5 - 74,414 82,176 156,590
695,679 74,414 82,176 852,269
As at 31st March 2009 J# 200943 H 31 H
Trade payables, other payables & 5 T HRIH ~
and accruals AR AT BRI K
JEsH I 258,699 = = 258,699
Short-term bank borrowings SR (E 169,233 = = 169,233
427932 - - 427932
Within Between 2 and
1 year S years Total
VER B2 8Ps4E At
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
Tt Tt Tk
Company A
As at 31st March 2010 201043 H 31 H
Other payables Hofh AT ARTE 585 - 585
Short-term bank borrowings ~ AHASRAT & 95,698 - 95,698
96,283 - 96,283
As at 31st March 2009 J#20094£3 A 31 H
Other payables Foph EATREIR 546 = 546
Short-term bank borrowings SR T 159,216 = 159,216
159,762 - 159,762
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

)

Commodity price risk

The Group is engaged in the sale of gold and
platinum ornaments. The gold and platinum markets
are influenced by global as well as regional supply
and demand conditions. A significant decline in
prices of gold and platinum could adversely affect
the Group’s financial performance. The Group uses
certain derivative financial instrument-trading of
gold contracts to reduce its exposure to fluctuations
in the price of gold. The derivative contracts are
settled every day end and the difference between
the contract price and market price is immediately
recognised in the income statement. As at 31st
March 2010, the notional value of the outstanding
contracts amounted to HK$129,276,000 (2009:
HK$106,785,000).

At 31st March 2010, if the purchase price of gold and
platinum had increased or decreased by 5%, profit
for the year ended 31st March 2010 would have been
approximately HK$5,273,000 or HK$11,699,000
lower, respectively.

At 31st March 2009, if the purchase price of gold and
platinum had increased or decreased by 5%, profit
for the year ended 3 1st March 2009 would have been
approximately HK$5,314,000 or HK$9,014,000
lower, respectively.
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4

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

©

Fair value estimation

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets,
including cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, other
receivables, deposits and amount due from an associate,

the Group’s financial liabilities, including trade and other
payables, accruals and short-term bank loans, approximate
their fair values due to their short maturities.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets (such as derivative financial instruments-trading of
gold) is based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet
date. The quoted market price used for financial assets held
by the Group is the current bid price.

The nominal values less any estimated credit adjustments
for financial assets and liabilities with a maturity of less than
one year are assumed to approximate their fair values. The
fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is
estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at
the current market interest rate that is available to the Group
for similar financial instruments.

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits

for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group manages the capital structure and make
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic
conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payments to
shareholders or obtain new bank borrowings.
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

©

Capital risk management (Continued)

The Group also monitors capital on the basis of gearing
ratio and the compliance of covenants of its borrowings.
The gearing ratio is calculated as net debt/(cash) divided by
total capital. Net debt/(cash) is calculated as total borrowings
(including current and non-current borrowings as shown

in the consolidated balance sheet) less cash and cash
equivalents. Total capital is calculated as “equity”, as shown
in the consolidated balance sheet, plus net debt/(cash).

The table below analyses the Group’s capital structure as at
31st March 2010:
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ALEER 201043 H31 HZ&EA
PREAHTANE

2010 2009
HK$’000 HKS$°000
T#T T T
Total borrowings &A% 313,700 169,000
Less: Cash and cash equivalents I8 : ¥4 KI5 EY) (286,946) (280,125)
Net debt/(cash) FEE (B4) 26,754 (111,125)
Total equity WE 15 AAH 1,687,281 1,273,227
Total capital B 1,714,035 1,162,102
Gearing ratio B R 1.6% 0%

The Group’s strategy is to maintain a solid capital base to
support the operations and development of its business in the
long term.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgments used in preparing the financial statements
are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results.
The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below.

(@)  Useful lives, residual values and depreciation
charges of property, plant and equipment/useful
lives and amortisation of leasehold land and land
use rights
The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives, residual values and related depreciation/amortisation
charges for the Group’s property, plant and equipment and
leasehold land and land use rights with reference to the
estimated periods that the Group intends to derive future
economic benefits from the use of these assets. Management
will revise the depreciation and amortisation charges where
useful lives are different to previously estimated, or it will
write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold. Actual economic
lives may differ from estimated useful lives and actual
residual values may differ from estimated residual values.
Periodic review could result in a change in depreciable lives
and residual values and therefore depreciation/amortisation
expense in future periods.

(b) Inventories
Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs
of completion and selling expenses. These estimates are
based on the current market condition and the historical
experience of manufacturing and selling products of similar
nature. It could change significantly as a result of changes in
customer taste and competitor actions in response to severe
industry cycle. Management reassesses these estimates at
each balance sheet date.
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5 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

©

Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets including property, plant and
equipment, leasehold land and land use rights, investments
in subsidiaries and investment in an associate are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
The recoverable amounts have been determined based on
value-in-use calculations or fair value less costs to sell. These
calculations require the use of judgments and estimates.

Management judgment is required in the area of asset
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event has
occurred that may indicate that the related asset values may
not be recoverable; (ii) whether the carrying value of asset
can be supported by the recoverable amount, being the higher
of fair value less costs to sell and net present value of future
cash flows which are estimated based upon the continued
use of the asset in the business; and (iii) the appropriate key
assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow projections
including whether these cash flow projections are discounted
using an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions selected
by management in assessing impairment, including the
discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the cash
flow projections, could materially affect the net present value
used in the impairment test and as a result affect the Group’s
financial condition and results of operations. If there is a
significant adverse change in the projected performance and
resulting future cash flow projections, it may be necessary to
take an impairment charge to the income statement.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(@

(e

Current and deferred income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in the PRC and other
jurisdictions. Judgement is required in determining the
provision for income taxes in each of these jurisdictions.
There are transactions and calculations during the ordinary
course of business for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such as differences will impact the income tax and
deferred income tax provisions in the period in which such
determination in made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when management
considers it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the temporary differences or tax
losses can be utilised. When the expectation is different
from the original estimate, such differences will impact

the recognition of deferred income tax assets and taxation
charges in the period in which such estimate is changed.

Provision for long service payment

The Group’s provision for long service payment is
determined with reference to statutory requirements, the
employees’ remuneration, their year of services and age
profile, and demographic assumptions including: pre-
retirement termination, involuntary termination, early
retirement, normal retirement, death and disability. The basis
of estimation is reviewed on an on-going basis and revised
where appropriate. Any changes in these assumptions will
impact the carrying amount of provision for long service
payments and as a result affect the results and financial
position of the Group.

5

Annual Report 2010 43

B okt il A B A i )

(d)

(e)

390 e 08 4 i 14 Bt

A T ZEC AN o 1B e At ]
B BT A5 o o S 2% ) o L
P A B IR, > 510 th K - 7E
H %S85 A A T R AR ¢
BLIAIIZE 5y R w3 o %55 S
1 B A BB 46 SR A FLIR S b e 8k
A BURR > A B 2 R R
A TR A ] £ T 45 750 B AR A e
B -

S T B 2 S R BT i 1R A B
ZIESEFTIGBLE E > A LG
2y AR ARAT AT R B A ik ) T
AR S 2% 5 T B 22 B B T e
RMAERD o & B 2 SR e
fliwh A 22 5 > A% 2 RS E it
filiatBesE 2 SAH A > 5 BR AE iy
HBUE E 2 iR R TR A -

=28 Ry

AR G $5 5 R E ~ R
&~ HMRB AR LA D RZ
TR A (LA 7% 28 PR A A~ I
A2 08 - f2 RARIK - I
BAK - S HCRAGRR) 2 R R
s A o AN R Bl T
B R AR E AR B RT » i%5F
BRI A S R RN
IR 5 < 488 4 < MR T (L - ) R
ARG B 2 BB AR UL B A S A o

93




Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7~#E4E [ (BRI [4%) A BRAS &

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Y B e M ik

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in the retailing and wholesaling of
gold and jewellery products and licensing business.

The chief operating decision-maker (“CODM”) has been identified
as the board of directors. CODM reviews the Group’s internal
reporting in order to assess performance and allocate resources.
Management has determined the operating segments based on these
reports.

CODM considers the business by nature of business activities and
assesses the performance of the following operating segments:

i Retailing — Hong Kong, Macau and overseas

il. Retailing — The People’s Republic of China (“PRC”)
iil. Wholesaling

iv. Licensing

CODM assesses the performance of the operating segments based
on measure of segment results. Finance income and costs, corporate
income and expenses are not included in the results for each
operating segment that is reviewed by the CODM. Other information
provided to the CODM is measured in a manner consistent with that
in the consolidated financial statements.

Assets of reportable segments exclude interest in an associate, certain
buildings and leasehold land, deferred tax assets and corporate assets,
all of which are managed on a central basis. These are part of the
reconciliation to total assets of the consolidated balance sheet.

Sales to external customers are after elimination of inter-segment
sales. Sales between segments are carried out at mutually agreed
terms. The revenue from external parties reported to the CODM is
measured in a manner consistent with that in the consolidated income
statement.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6  AERERL @0
Year ended 31st March 2010
RE 201043 1 31 H LA
Retailing -
Hong Kong, Reportable
Macau Retailing - segments
and overseas The PRC ~ Wholesaling Licensing Total
BH-Fik DES 75
WP RS B -PE iR W At
HK$000 HKS$’000 HK$000 HKS$’000 HK$000
Ti#x TH#L T#x T T
Revenue WA
Sales of merchandises HER 4,041,455 289,169 1,958,174 - 6,288,798
Inter-segment sales gk (239,820) - (1,506,661) - (1,746,481)
3,801,635 289,169 451,513 - 4,542,317
Sales of scrap gold and HERLS RS
platinum and gold bullion L DN G - - 670,585 - 670,585
Sales to external customers K FHE 3,801,635 289,169 1,122,098 - 5,212,902
Royalty income (S UN - - - 154,369 154,369
Consultancy fee income BIFZIA - - - 19,161 19,161
Revenue from external customers 28 FEIMEF ZIA 3,801,635 289,169 1,122,098 173,530 5,386,432
Results of reportable segments W B EL 387,914 39,103 142,889 107,898 677,804
A reconciliation of results of ] B HRSEAE
reportable segments to SRR ) i 1
profit for the year is as follows: HRWT :
Results of reportable segments LEX 7 Ea 677,804
Unallocated income FATIA 10,595
Unallocated expenses KBRS (53,286)
Operating profit BEwRA 635,113
Finance income PE A 342
Finance costs g g4l (3,548)
Share of results of an associate TN — B A R 5% 2,343
Profit before taxation BRBL i e 634,250
Taxation B (97,540)
Profit for the year LALNN7 ] 536,710
Minority interests DRIBCR A (5,078)
Profit attributable to equity AR A
holders of the Company HEAY e A 531,632
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 AR )
Year ended 31st March 2010
BRE 201043} 31 H LA
Retailing -
Hong Kong, Reportable
Macauand  Retailing - Inter-segment  segments
overseas  The PRC Wholesaling  Licensing elimination Total Unallocated Total
FE-Hik LS 5]

W RS B - 8 WARE W T it
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS000  HKS'000

T#x  T#x  THx  THX  TExX  T#x  Ti#x  Tix

Depreciation of property, VEN G

plant and equipment By 19,131 8,307 9,883 - - 3 2866 40,187
Amortisation of leasehold & T k3
Jand and land use rights (i o 16 176 151 - - 3 3229 357
As at 31st March 2010
JR201043 5311
Retailing -

Hong Kong, Reportable

Macauand  Retailing - Inter-segment  segments
overseas ~ The PRC Wholesaling  Licensing elimination Total Unallocated Total

RHE-FE- LS V8]

WERAS B - E 8 WACRE R T L it
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS000  HKS'000

T#x T TEx T TEx T TEx Tk

Segment assets IR 139,141 301,161 740463 22,664  (248453) 2211976 - 221197
Interests in an associate =R T 2 4,507 4,507
Properties VS 51,705 51705
Leasehold land e 25365 215,365
Deferred tax assets IEILRR G 13,677 13,677
Other unallocated assets HAoRs B 103,711 103,711
Total assets per consolidated & A B A £ (7%

balance sheet Jit g 2,600,941
Segment liabilities Gin0=U Q27,060)  (259,662)  (140,061)  (104,694) 248453 (483,024) - (483,09
Deferred tax liabilitics IRIERIH & IR 15 (119
Long-term bank borrowings RIS THEE (150878)  (150,878)
Short-term bank borrowings SR (EE (145618)  (145,618)
Curtent portion of long-term ~ RAIRITHE

bank borrowings B (1720d) (17,204
Taxation payable JEfBLE (50,145) (50,145)
Other unallocated liabilities iR/ AL f& (59,676) (59,676

Total liabilities per BRRRARE
consolidated balance sheet  Fiznilif & (913,660)
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 iR )
Year ended 31st March 2009
HE 200953 31 HILERE
Retailing —

Hong Kong, Reportable
Macau Retailing — segments
and overseas ThePRC ~ Wholesaling Licensing Total
T (=gt
WK ERE- e AR st

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T T Tl Tt T

Revenue A
Sales of merchandises SHERM 3,016,475 177,365 1,181,184 = 4,375,024
Inter-segment sales TP & (118,275) = (921,700) = (1,039,975)
2,898,200 177,365 259,484 - 3,335,049

Sales of scrap gold and SRS RS

platinum and gold bullion FERIDL R i e - - 486,643 - 486,643
Sales to external customers K FHE 2,898,200 177,365 746,127 - 3,821,692
Royalty income 1ZE L UN — = = 126,440 126,440
Consultancy fee income FHHE LN - - - 11,095 11,095
Revenue from external customers A& HESMEF ZItA 2,898,200 177,365 746,127 137,535 3,959,227
Results of reportable segments BB EL 190,398 9,034 73,292 89,859 362,583
A reconciliation of results of ] B

reportable segments to SRR A i 1

profit for the year is as follows: HiRWT :
Results of reportable segments CES 7583 362,583
Unallocated income R EA 4829
Unallocated expenses RO (49,021)
Operating profit RERA 318,391
Finance income BHIRA 4,702
Finance costs el (8,302)
Share of results of an associate TN — B A R 5% 1,230
Profit before taxation B BL i R A 316,021
Taxation B (37,781)
Profit for the year 4 MRER 278,240

Minority interests DB A (3,080)

Profit attributable to equity AR RERRA A
holders of the Company KAt A 275,160
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 Vig 3¢ 30 )
Year ended 31st March 2009
BE 200953 31 HILEE
Retailing -
Hong Kong, Reportable
Macauand  Retailing - Inter-segment  segments
overseas  ThePRC Wholesaling  Licensing ~ elimination Total  Unallocated Total
TE-FE Vit

WM RSy FE - HE IR RS I AR st
HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS$000
Tkt Tk T T TEx  TEx TEx TEx

Depreciation of property, VEN )

plant and equipment BT 19,755 4,156 9458 - - 33369 2686 36,055
Amortisation of leasehold A& T3 % L
land and land use rights (i P 16 176 154 - - 346 20 366
As at 31st March 2009
200943 A 31 H
Retailing -
Hong Kong, Reportable
Macauand  Retailing - Inter-segment  segments
overseas  ThePRC Wholesaling  Licensing ~ elimination Total  Unallocated Total
TE-FE- BE= Vit

WP RSN FE - HE MR s RO st
HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS$000
Tt Tk T T TR TEx  TEx TEx

Segment assets AR 1089571 151556 861,832 9538 (489711) 1622786 - 1622786
Interests in an associate e L NGV 1955 1955
Deferred tax assets BB B 14,40 14,240
Other unallocated assets Hip ki G 115464 115464
Total assets per consolidated &7 B A A%

balance sheet Jiin A 1,754.445
Segment liabilities Y=L Q76773)  (87,091)  (63,777)  (84328) 489711 (222258) - (038)
Deferred tax liabilities IRIERIR & {5 (2980)  (2.980)
Short-term bank borrowings  SLASRAT(E & (169.000)  (169,000)
Taxation payable JEfTHIE 7806)  (27,806)
Other unallocated liabilities ~ FA R/ L& (9,174)  (59,174)
Total liabilities per ERvEALE

consolidated balance sheet P A f% (481,218)




SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The Group’s revenue are mainly derived from customers located in
Hong Kong and the PRC. An analysis of the Group’s revenue by
location of customers is as follows:

Annual Report 2010 43

vig 3¢ 30 )
AR I 2 A B A R s

BT o 11K T FTAE ] 4 2 A8 48 H ik
AR

2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$°000
Tt T T

Revenue A
Hong Kong i 4,003,289 3,113,074
The PRC i 855,496 551,454
Other locations A 527,647 294,699
5,386,432 3,959,227

An analysis of the Group’s non-current assets (other than deferred tax
assets) by location of assets is as follows:

2010
Other
HongKong ThePRC  locations
ik PE bR
HK$’000 HK$000 HKS$°000
Ti#x  Td#x  T#x

e T AE ) 23 2 A B B O )
(RELFFRAERLIHE ) M an T -

2009
Other
Total HongKong  ThePRC  locations Total
A i i A Et
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS$000
T#x T T Tk TiEx

Non-current assets B
Property, plant and ERY i
equipment Vo iiit 75791 86,077 5816
Leasehold land and il
land use rights 3 ff A 1 26578 15463 -
Interests in an associate S =N
b4 3] 4507 - -
Trading licence TR 1,080 - -
Rental deposits iExien 29,035 408 1,968

167,684 24922 75,724 6975 107,621

232,041 1,664 15,654 = 17318
4,507 1,955 = = 1,955
1,080 1,080 = = 1,080

31411 22,092 754 2,361 25,907

326991 101,948 7,784

436,723 51,913 92,132 9,836 153,881
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7  OTHER INCOME 7 B
2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$000
T TH#IT
(Restated)
(FE%1))
Rebate from import agents A A E 1 1,850 9,575
Value-added tax refund HE{EBUR 3K 28,690 11,337
Rental income HEWA 10,227 1,253
Others oAt 3,083 6,067
43,850 28,232
8  OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS, NET 8 b Ol5HE) ik o B

2010 2009
HKS$°000 HK$’°000
T#x THIT

(Loss)/gain on derivative financial WG Z AT LA
instruments — trading of gold (E1R) Wizs (22,491) 2,709

Write back of provision for Il 450 S5 A7 BT

slow-moving inventories 552 735
(21,939) 3,444
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EXPENSES BY NATURE LR BZ P
2010 2009
HKS$°000 HK$°000
T#x TH#T
(Restated)
(FE31))
Cost of sales S A
— cost of inventories sold —DEFE A 4,028,592 3,038,697
— cost of licensing business — i RETS A
(including part of directors’ (B4 H 40 5 I <8
emoluments) 64,303 46,578
4,092,895 3,085,275
Staff costs Wik B A
(including part of directors’ (FLAEFR 53 2 )
emoluments) 263,670 239,097
Operating lease rentals o ARTF A 2 4
in respect of land and buildings 197,291 164,329
Advertising and promotion expenses  J& 15 % H {45 52 33,045 33,041
Commission expenses to IAMERRAH
credit card companies Z A4 B S 42,640 31,617
Depreciation of property, W2 - R By
plant and equipment 40,187 36,055
Amortisation of leasehold land LR b, Bt e PR RE S B
and land use rights 3,572 366
Provision for impairment of THE YR R
leasehold improvements - 2,315
Loss on disposal of property, EMEE - R K
plant and equipment and A SR B 2 e R
leasehold land 1,106 351
Deficit on revaluation of properties W2k 2 E Al e A 6 6
Auditor’s remuneration A2 B PN <5 3,320 3,096
Others HoAt 95,498 76,964
Total A 4,773,230 3,672,512
Representing: f -
Cost of sales B A 4,092,895 3,085,275
Selling and distribution costs SHEE T A6 2 610,922 519,354
Administrative expenses 1T A 69,413 67,883
4,773,230 3,672,512
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10

11

FINANCE COSTS, NET 10 WBERN - S8
2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$°000
T#IL T
Interest income FLEHA 342 495
Net exchange gain SRS 4 v - 4,207
342 4,702
Interest on short-term bank borrowings 48 I8R5 &2 F & (1,688) (8,302)
Interest on long-term bank borrowings =H#R1 7 & &2 F 5.
not wholly repayable within 5 years  JF jid 114 A BB fE 5= (1,483) =
Net exchange loss [T e s 4 V3 A (377 -
(3,206) (3,600)
TAXATION 11 BH

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of 16.5%
(2009: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year.
Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on the estimated

assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the

countries in which the Group operates.

T s 5B T A 4 B A 51 I LB 6k A
i Bl % 16.5% (2009 4F © 16.5%) 2 4 1E
5 o AN I 2 B B T AR 4 B A R
R T 1 AR 4R [ SE 55 T 7E B K IR
REHH o

2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$000
T THsTT
Current taxation: BRI -
— Hong Kong profits tax — H WA 55,240 26,553
— over-provision in prior years — P AR R AR (948) (3,283)
— overseas taxation — g HNRLIE 39,434 10,930
Deferred taxation (Note 29) IRAEHIIE (FfaE29) 3,814 3,581
97,540 37,781

Pursuant to the relevant PRC corporate income tax rules and
regulations, certain subsidiaries of the Group qualify as foreign
investment production enterprise and are entitled to two years
exemption from income taxes followed by a 50% reduction in
income taxes for the ensuing three years from its first profit-

making year. Pursuant to the new PRC corporate income tax rules

promulgated in 2007, these subsidiaries are subjected to tax rate
gradually increased to 25% towards year 2012.

AR 75 HH T i [ £ 3 T 15 40 81 2 AL 481
A 55 25 1 B A T AT A4 i B A
PEAZE 2 G > HETE S SN T A5 B T 4
B AR AR B o SRR B
BI85 1) A B R AR A o AR 2007 4R A5 A
8 B A S T AR B > RS S A
) T A5 BB 3% AF R 3 F 2012 4F 19
25% o
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12

TAXATION (Continued) 11

The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation rate in Hong
Kong as follows:
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B (80
2 [ 3 o i ) 2 T L 75 s

HREHA 2 BB AT

2010 2009
HK$°000 HK$°000
T T
Profit before taxation R A5t i i ) 634,250 316,021
Less: Share of results of an associate 8 : MEAL— Wi/ m] 644 (2,343) (1,230)
631,907 314,791
Calculated at a taxation rate of FEBLH 16.5% (2009 4F : 16.5%)
16.5% (2009: 16.5%) FHA 2 BiIE 104,265 51,941
Effect of different taxation rates A ] 2 [ A AN ] 2 5
in other jurisdictions (772) (1,039)
Effect of tax holidays of F e o A ) S 2 5
the PRC subsidiaries (13,769) (19,588)
Effect of change in tax rate Tl 25T 5% - 848
Income not subject to taxation THHARBL 2 A (482) (649)
Expenses not deductible for ANFTHIBEZ ST
taxation purposes 6,360 5,884
Over-provision in prior years R4 B R RE A (948) (3,283)
Unrecognised tax losses EREREGINE i 845 878
Utilisation of previously 1 FH AAE R R Bl LE s 15
unrecognised tax losses (1,588) (69)
Withholding tax on undistributed e B8] B J 2 ) R 43 B
profit of PRC subsidiaries ZTEHL 3,629 2,858
97,540 37,781
PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY 12 AA vl HERR A A AN i)

HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company is dealt

with in the financial statements of the Company to the extent of
HK$199,589,000 (2009: HK$109,893,000).

AR T B R 3 N R B 2 AR R R £
FrA NG %R A 199,589,000 #5 7T (2009
4 109,893,000 #:IC) ©
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13

14

EARNINGS PER SHARE 13 A
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the BRI R TIRRE AN AR A A
Group’s profit attributable to equity holders of the Company of JiE A 7S 4 8] 355 1] 531,632,000 %5 7G (2009
HK$531,632,000 (2009: HK$275,160,000) and the weighted A 1 275,160,000 ¥#570) S 4 A ELEEA T 4E
average number of 492,507,850 (2009: 492,507,850) ordinary shares Je 2 R4 85 492,507,850 A (2009 4F
in issue during the year. 492,507,850 %) 515 ©
Diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31st March 2010 and H A 4 38 P NI A ) 3 AT EL VB AU
2009 is the same as the basic earnings per share as there were no ) 38 R > TR 22 2010 4F £ 2009 4F 3 H
potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding during the years. 31 H R4 2 g PR A 22 ) B g e B AR
B AIAHR] o
DIVIDENDS 14 kA
2010 2009
HK$000 HK$°000
T#xT T
2009/10 interim, paid, of HK$0.15 EL IR 2009/10 4F-JEE = i1 s 5,
(2008/09 interim: HK$0.05) g L B 0.15 W T
per ordinary share (2008/09 4F £ A S,
0.05#57T) 73,876 24,625
2009/10 final, proposed, of HK$0.28  #£JK 2009/10 47 A 1A 5.
(2008/09 final: HK$0.12) 5 A5 4 i 0.28 s G
per ordinary share (note) (2008/09 4F-FE AR HAME S,
0.127#7¢) (KH&E) 137,902 59,101
Note: B L -

At a meeting held on 20th July 2010, the directors recommended the payment
of a final dividend of HK$0.28 per ordinary share, totalling HK$137,902,000.
Such dividend is to be approved by the shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting on 31st August 2010. This proposed dividend is not reflected as
dividends payable in these financial statements, but will be reflected as an
appropriation of retained earnings for the year ending 31st March 2011.

R20104E7 H20H 847 2 Gk - #HHE
i VR AT A0 e S g T 4 B 0.28 WS T - A 3k
137,902,000% JG © 47 BH A S Z8 1 ISR 20104F
8 H 31 H 8247 2 IEHGAAE R & L HEUE - PR
I S 4R A L S8 A TS R o S B RSB S,
MRS I A B E 2011 4E3 A 31 H IE4ERE 2 f-
BRI
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS 15 BRHER A
2010 2009
HK$°000 HK$°000
T#xT T
(Restated)
(E31)
Net contributions to pension plans REF R R T S
charged to the consolidated ARG T A OREE
income statement 10,642 9,693
The expense is recognised in the B TR SR A
following line items in the iR LI TIHE
consolidated income statement: iR
Selling and distribution costs SHEE K ariHE 9,691 8,616
Administrative expenses 1T H 951 1,077
10,642 9,693

At 31st March 2010, there were no unutilised forfeited contributions
(2009: Nil).

201043 H 31 H > M 48R 8 i 2 R ik
HEEK (2009 4F © 4E) o

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR 16 EARAHSEHARME
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) HEFHE
The aggregate amounts of emoluments payable to the A TR JEEARE AN 5 ) 2 2 T <6 AR
directors of the Company during the year were as follows: LI
2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$°000
T#IL T
Fees e 1,070 1,024
Salaries, allowances and ¥ra o Bk R EY A G
benefits-in-kinds 37,351 31,297
Performance and R REBIHEIRZACAT
discretionary bonuses 13,174 6,697
Contributions to pension plan R AR&E 51 #|{ik2k 293 292

Total directors emoluments,  ME/ 58 SH i 4> &% B i A 155 R
payable and expensed in the ~ SZ#H 2 K0FH
financial statements

51,888 39,310
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16 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR 16  #HA R MBATBLA B4 0
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a)  HHA )
The remuneration of each director is set out below: HERZMEWT

For the year ended 31st March 2010

HAE 201043 H 31 HIEAEEE
Performance Employer’s
and  contribution
discretionary to pension
bonuses plan Total
Fees Salaries BRI TP YN emoluments
Name of Director WA g Hi4 B2 A4 GiE P [ ek
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$°000 HKS$’000
T T T T T
WONG Wai Sheung HRE 55 33,162 6,099 126 39,442
TSE Moon Chuen A 55 1,024 1,613 45 2,737
LAW Tim Fuk, Paul FRIAE 55 1,223 3,049 55 4,382
LAU Kwok Sum BB A 55 884 889 40 1,868
WONG Ho Lung, Danny ~ #ifHE 55 331 762 12 1,160
WONG Lan Sze, Nancy 25 Fl 55 382 762 15 1,214
WONG Koon Cheung e 55 115 - - 170
CHAN Wai Bt 55 115 - - 170
LEE Shu Kuan 2Rt 55 115 - - 170
YEUNG Po Ling, 75 3
Pauline (note) (Fft3E) 55 - - - 55
HUI King Wai FHE 110 - - - 110
HUI Chiu Chung* HEIR 130 - - - 130
LO Mun Lam, Raymond*  J 5 150 - - - 150
TAI Kwok Leung, HE R
Alexander” 130 - - - 130

1,070 37,351 13,174 293 51,888
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16 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR 16 #HH R EGHEMA BME @)
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
(a)  Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) P )
For the year ended 31st March 2009
# 4200943 A 31 HIEFE
Performance Employer’s
and contribution
discretionary to pension
bonuses plan Total
Fees Salaries BRBIME [EESpEYN emoluments
Name of Director EHREL Hig: b B IEAL i (Pl [
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
Tkt Tkt Tt Tt Tt
WONG Wai Sheung HEE 55 27422 3271 136 30,884
TSE Moon Chuen 2 55 981 877 46 1,959
LAW Tim Fuk, Paul A AR 55 1,182 1,636 54 2,927
LAU Kwok Sum BI= 55 854 409 40 1,358
WONG Ho Lung, Danny i
(appointed on 1st (7142008 4F:
September 2008) 97 1 HEZM) kY) 233 252 7 524
WONG Lan Sze, Nancy R
(appointed on lst (12008 4F
September 2008) 9711 HIEZAT) kY) 280 252 9 573
WONG Koon Cheung I 55 115 - = 170
CHAN Wai Bf 55 115 = = 170
LEE Shu Kuan i 55 115 - = 170
YEUNG Po Ling, it
Pauline (note) (PtsE) 55 - = = 55
HUI King Wai LR 110 - - - 110
CHIU Wai Mo it A
(resigned on (712008 4F:
24th July 2008)" 7H 24 BEHE) # 40 = = = 40
HUI Chiu Chung* R 130 = = = 130
LO Mun Lam, Raymond* %+ 150 = = = 150
TAI Kwok Leung, BWE K
Alexander (appointed (7~ 2008 4F
on 24th July 2008)* 7H24H
BZAT) 90 - - = 90
1,024 31,297 6,697 292 39310
#  Independent non-executive directors. o ST AT
Note: Wk

M ELF /NI B AR (AL R IR T A4
[ DA A A 52 [ ) o o S IR TGS - i
AN ) — R M A F RS RS A
(3 R E 34(b)) ©

i E20094F 5201043 A 31 H 1k 4
JE o Sl A SO 4 o

Miss YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline has entered into a service contract
with a subsidiary of the Company for her exclusive services for the
promotion of the products and services of the Group (see also Note
34(b)).

No directors waived their emoluments in respect of the years ended
31st March 2009 and 2010.
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16 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR 16 WA R AT B 4 (a0
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
(b)  Five highest paid individuals (b) ThAEAEHFMAL
Among the five highest paid individuals, four (2009: four) hA B HM A L A
of them are directors of the Company and the details of (2009 4F : PO44) Sy AN HE =
their remuneration have been disclosed in the preceding e 2 P wf I CR b B o
paragraph. The emoluments of the remaining highest paid EERCS AT UNa A s el
individual are as follows: I
2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$°000
T#xT T
Salaries, allowances and e B R EY A
benefits-in-kinds 1,555 1,761
Performance and discretionary % ZRIAM 35 2 AEAL
bonuses 3,240 1,659
Contributions to pension plan  #RAREF1H#| itk 57 72

4,852 3,492
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17 W% - BB Bt i
£ |

Group
Furniture
Leasehold  and fixtures
improve- and computer Plant and
ments equipment machinery Motor
Properties RHmE  BRRE Wi vehicles Total
¥ KRR RR® Fi bk
HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$000 HKS$000 HK$°000 HKS$"000
T T#iL T# T#x T#x T#x
Cost or valuation A B (E
At Ist April 2009 J£20094E4 A 1TH 69,369 99,352 48,743 23,026 7274 247,764
Exchange adjustment I . 8 691 404 0l 187 51 1,554
Additions, at cost NE A H 47,040 31,844 11,669 2,888 2,593 96,034
Revaluation adjustment AR 5424 - - - - 5424
Disposals i (323) (10,724) 2,07) (154) (1,038) (14,311)
At31st March 2010 7201043 A31H 122,201 120,876 58,561 25,947 8,880 336,465
Accumulated depreciationand ~ 2FEHTE
impairment charges Bt i
At 1st April 2009 J£20094F4 A 1TH 4380 75,310 36,883 18,039 5,531 140,143
Exchange adjustment T i 52 428 183 166 41 870
Charge for the year AR 2,191 26,789 6,723 3,304 1,090 40,187
Disposals HE @ (9,599) (1,630) (150) (1,038) (12419)
At 31st March 2010 #20104:3 A31H 6,621 92,928 42,159 21,449 5,624 168,781
Net book value HR T ¥
At 31st March 2010 201043 A 31 H 115,580 27948 16,402 4,498 3,256 167,684
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17 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17 W3 ~ BB Beisefli (s
(Continued)
Group (Continued) M ()
Furniture
Leasehold and fixtures
improve-  and computer Plant and
ments equipment machinery Motor
Properties HEWE G- %8 R vehicles Total
L B REERE RS i i
HK$°000 HKS000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TEE  TEER TET TEE TEE TR
Cost or valuation WA
At Ist April 2008 J20084E4 7 1 H 68,039 86,141 45,129 20971 6,537 226,817
Exchange adjustment I .02 970 (216) 75 256 66 1,151
Additions, at cost WE - AE 463 20,388 5783 1,966 671 29271
Revaluation adjustment HffE (103) - - - - (103)
Transfer between categories hesliil it = (14) 39 (25) - -
Impairment i = (4,231) = = - (4,231)
Disposals HE - (2,716) (2,283) (142) = (5,141)
At 31st March 2009 J#20094E3 A 31 H 69,369 99,352 48,743 23,026 7274 247,764
Accumulated depreciation L4 sy
and impairment charges B
At st April 2008 J20084F4 7 1 H 2,840 55311 32,599 14,265 4339 109,354
Exchange adjustment e 58, 36 (256) 1 161 39 (19)
Charge for the year AR 1,504 2,721 5,946 3,731 1,153 36,055
Transfer between categories ettt = 3) 7 4) - -
Impairment Wi fE - (1,916) - - - (1,916)
Disposals HE - (1,547) (1,670) (114) - (3,331)
At 31st March 2009 7200943 431 H 4,380 75,310 36,883 18,039 5,531 140,143
Net book value R
At 31st March 2009 7200943 431 H 64,989 24,042 11,860 4987 1,743 107,621
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(Continued)
Group (Continued) £ (5)
The analysis of the cost or valuation of the above assets is as follows: AU RASE A E AT
Furniture
Leasehold  and fixtures
improve- and computer Plant and
ments  equipment  machinery Motor
Properties  AlE#E B EE Wi vehicles Total
Wk R BB 2 12 T Lk
HKS$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T T Tk T T#T Tk
At 31st March 2010 #20104£3 431 H
At cost JRAE - 120,876 58,561 25,947 8,880 214,264
At professional HEAE
valuation — 2010 —20104F 115,580 - - - - 115,580
115,580 120,876 58,561 25,947 8,880 329,844
At 31st March 2009 J#20094£3 431 H
At cost JEAME - 99,352 48,743 23,026 7274 178,395
At professional HOEAL(E
valuation — 2009 —2009 4F: 64,989 = = = = 64,989
64,989 99,352 48,743 23,026 7,274 243,384
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17 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17 P03k ~ B3 Bt i )
(Continued)
Group (Continued) M ()
Net book value of the properties is analysed as follows: HA 2 2 BRTE R B0 T
Group
#M
2010 2009
HK$°000 HK$°000
T#xT T
In Hong Kong, held on: TER WL T 9107 A -
— Leases of over 50 years —504FELA EARAY 316 324
— Leases of between 10 to 50 years —10 % 50414y 51,976 595
52,292 919
Outside Hong Kong, held on: GEEAME T
— Leases of over 50 years —504FELA EFHAY 518 527
— Leases of between 10 to 50 years —10 % 50414y 62,770 63,543
___________ 63,280 D
115,580 64,989

Properties were revalued on the basis of open market value at
31st March 2010 by Asset Appraisal Limited, an independent
professional valuer.

The carrying amount of these revalued properties would have been
HKS$111,307,000 (2009: HK$66,166,000) had they been stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.

At 31st March 2010, a property of the Group with carrying value of
HK$51,705,000 (2009: Nil) was pledged as security for certain long-
term bank borrowings of the Group (Note 26(d)).

YySEC o 8 7 HESE A R Asset Appraisal
Limited 4%/ 20104F 3 H 31 H 2 A BT {E
FLHEF A o

R B 3 DAL UAS {80 R B AT B K R B
80 Ll 4R 51 e - ) FL T U T (L R
111,307,000 ¥ 7C (2009 4F : 66,166,000 #

JL) °

201043 H31 H > A< 4 [ Bk 1 A 4
51,705,000 #5702 P13 (2009 4%« 4E) £ 41K
PRYEA SR 2 TR ST i B 2 5 0% (Bt
#£26(d)) °
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LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE AL 3t e - 3ib i ) B
RIGHTS
Group e |
2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$°000
T T
Cost JEAS
At 1st April waH1H 19,034 18,371
Addition RE 218,573 431
Disposal HE 31 -
Exchange difference [FE b1, 22 %H 166 232
At 31st March A3H31H 237,342 19,034
Accumulated amortisation SR
At Ist April w4A1H 1,716 1,336
Amortisation for the year EENE: 5] 3,572 366
Disposal == 3 -
Exchange difference [FRE b, 2 A 16 14
At 31st March w3gaew s 1,716
Net book amount R TR VFHE
At 31st March W3H31H 232,041 17,318
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18 LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE 18 AL b B 4 d s A (0
RIGHTS (Continued)
Group (Continued) M ()
The net book amount of leasehold land and land use rights is analysed L = b B = b ol R 2 R T V(L 20 AT
as follows: L/
2010 2009
HK$°000 HK$°000
T#xT T
In Hong Kong, held on: TER WL 9107 A -
— Leases of over 50 years —504FELA EAH#AY 930 946
— Leases of between 10 to 50 years —10 £ 50 FFHEAY 215,648 718
216,578 1,664
Outside Hong Kong, held on: GEEAME T
— Leases of over 50 years —504FELA EAHAY 751 765
— Leases of between 10 to 50 years —10 £ 50 FFHE%Y 14,712 14,889
___________ 15463 I & o
232,041 17,318
At 31st March 2010, certain leasehold land of the Group with A20104F3 A 31 H » A4 35 T IR 1 H
carrying value of HK$215,365,000 (2009: Nil) was pledged as £4215,365,000 #5762 FL 1 L4 (2009 4F
security for certain long-term bank borrowings of the Group (Note i) S EAREE T REMITHEZ
26(d)). AR (KE5E26(d)) °
19 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 19 WA B
Company
A
2010 2009
HK$°000 HK$°000
T#xT THTT
Unlisted investments, at cost FEETRE > FRNAME 298,887 298,887
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 35 to the 2 B S ) N S A R R B

financial statements. 350
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20 INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE 20 R—FKBBAEZHER
Group
£M
2010 2009
HK$’000 HKS$’000
Tt R REPTH
Share of net assets, as at 1st April JEALEETE > A4 H 1 H 1,955 874
Share of results of an associate JREA — R ) 24
— Profit for the year s Rl 2,343 1,230
2,343 1,230
Exchange difference [ifE 5 2= %H 209 (149)
Share of net assets, JEAL B EVFE > X3 HA31H
as at 31st March 4,507 1,955
Amount due from an associate M — F W /N m BRIA 7,962 6,491
Amount due from an associate is denominated in HK$ and is JE e — Z W 8 N \) 22 MR IELS DA JC R
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. The associate did B 5 Sl A MEAEAT > fe B % ZE I 2 OR AH
not have defaults in the past. During the year ended 31st March 2010, R o R /A F R R NI M X RT Bk o R
no amount due from the associate was impaired (2009: Nil). FE20104E3 H 31 HIEAE A > RE % B

BN F 2 IRIANG M (E (2009 4F : M) o

Particulars of the associate of the Group as at 31st March 2010 are as AL W A AR 20104E3 A 31 H 2 5616
follows: Wy
Particulars of % of attributable
Place of issued interest held Principal
Name incorporation share capital indirectly activities
# s o CEITBARREN BT e R
2010 2009
Luk Fook Diamond Hong Kong HK$6,120,000 50% 50% Manufacturing and
Company Limited wholesale of
diamond products
AEFOARAF i 6,120,000 % G o

PiEiin:S
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21 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 21 &4 - T TRIE B IO ik R B e
RECEIVABLES L]
Group Company
M A
2010 2009 2010 2009
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T#x THTT T THTT
Non-current FF BN
Rental deposits et 4 31,411 25,907 - =
Current R
Deposits i 21,830 15,246 - =
Prepayments TEfTHRIA 12,595 6,842 28 =
Other receivables oAt JE S AR IE 11,438 21,659 - -
45,863 43,747 28 —
77,274 69,654 28 -
The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s rental AL AR R 2 etk e~ e R H
deposits, deposits, and other receivables approximate their fair value A R 5 R L 2 B T (B B8 4 2 T (ELAH
and are denominated in the following currencies: Fr o MiLL BB T LA
Group Company
M A
2010 2009 2010 2009
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T#x THsTT T THTT
HKS$ T 52,398 48,213 - -
RMB N 10,526 13,662 - -
US$ eV 540 431 - -
Other currencies FHoAth £ s 1,215 506 - =
64,679 62,812 - =
The credit quality of deposits and other receivables has been assessed P < o A RESOHR T 2 (5 SRR A
by reference to historical information about the counterparty default 221 B3 F 5 R M 2R 2 1 G R
rates. The existing counterparties do not have defaults in the past. HEATREAL o DA BT 75 i A i 4 R
During the year ended 31st March 2010, no deposits and other $k o HFE 201043 H 31 H IL4EE R - if
receivables were impaired (2009: Nil). e 4B N Al R IR T 2 (L (2009 4F:
) ©
22 INVENTORIES —- GROUP 22 HER-%M

At 31st March 2010, inventories carried at net realisable value
amounted to approximately HK$5,967,000 (2009: HK$884,000).

R20104E3 A 31 H » $E A S BUFEIIIRZ
17 & £ 5,967,000 #5 I (2009 4F © 884,000
HIT) °
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23 AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO SUBSIDIARIES — 23 MEMC HEAT BB 2 vl — A
"

COMPANY
The balances are denominated in HK$ and are unsecured, interest- P2 SRR DA TR IHE 5 6 £ SRR
free and repayable on demand. G S5 S ZR EEE SR -
24 TRADE RECEIVABLES 24 S REBCIRA
The Group’s sales are mainly on cash basis. Credit sales are mainly AR B K FR 3 8545 T3 DA B AT © BR AR
for the Group’s wholesale customers with credit terms of 0 to 90 FTELAREHEZMBEREFMZ > FEH
days. FO0E9H -
The ageing analysis of trade receivables is as follows: 2 5 FER HRIE 2 BRI T BT I R
Group
3|
2010 2009
HKS"000 HKS°000
T#T T
0-30 days 0—30H 49,351 27,274
31-60 days 31—60 H 19,197 7,812
61-90 days 61—90 H 5,258 946
91-120 days 91—120 H - 14
Over 120 days A 120 H - 1,035
73,806 37,081
The carrying amounts of trade receivables approximate their fair B 5 MESC AR T 2 R TR R BT (EAH A -
values.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are AR AL 2 5 WE WU 2 R T A 471 £
denominated in the following currencies: BTy BAA -
Group
#M
2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$°000
T#xT T
HKS$ T 17,650 13,685
RMB NG 54,099 22,184
Other currencies oA £ s 2,057 1,212

73,806 37,081
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24 TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 24 RS HEMOIRE ()
The credit quality of trade receivables has been assessed by By EIRAREE ST R 2 58 T
reference to historical default rates of the counterparty. The existing T5 A HE R L ST RN - BIE BT
counterparties do not have defaults in the past. AT ST A X T % o
As at 31st March 2010, no trade receivables were past due. As at 31st 201043 H 31 H » & 5 ME i R JE I 41
March 2009, HK$741,000 trade receivables were past due but were il o j220094E3 A 31 H - &5 EIRR
not provided for any impairment losses. JTH 741,000 # T T /@ - A SE N AR
R e AR A A
During the year ended 31st March 2010, no trade receivables were A 2010453 A 31 H IR - & 5 1
impaired (2009: Nil). Wi B TSI B (L (2009 4F © ) -
25 TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES 25 B SMEATIRIE - A ME A R
AND ACCRUALS T Tipe ]
Group Company
#M A
2010 2009 2010 2009

HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
T#x T o T#x T o

Trade payables 5 REATRIE 274,141 68,780 - =
Deposits from customers MK KRR Z

and licensees HES 119,461 87,241 - =
Salaries and welfare payables M4 ¥4 A8 F 64,132 49321 - =
Other payables HoAth A iR TE 48,551 32,538 585 546
Accrued expenses JERT#2 24,149 20,819 - =

530,434 258,699 585 546
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25 RUGMEATMRIE - JUAbRE AR

AND ACCRUALS (Continued) B Mt sk I ()
The ageing analysis of trade payables is as follows: B 5 REATRRTE 2 BRI AT 4 T
Group
|

2010 2009
HK$°000 HK$°000
T#T T
0-30 days 0—30H 187,538 37,958
31-60 days 31—60 H 53,960 16,676
61-90 days 61—90 H 14,226 5,761
91-120 days 91—120 H 10,147 1,405
Over 120 days B 120 H 8,270 6,980
274,141 68,780
The carrying amounts of trade payables, other payables and accruals B 5y REAST MR T~ At JRE A5 B T % B T 3K

approximate their fair values.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s trade
payables, other payables and accruals are denominated in the
following currencies:

VH 2 R T (L BEFL A AR A

ARG S AR ) 2 B 5 RE AT BRIE ~ HoAt
A B I % B i R I 2 MR T (B DA T 5

T BALA
Group Company
L |
2010 2009 2010 2009

HKS$’000 HK$000  HK$°000 HKS$’000
Tt TETT T#L THETT

HKS$ T
RMB NG
US$ LS
Other currencies oAl 5 s

271,260 123,191 585 546
167,208 111,365 - =
73,948 14,264 - =
18,018 9,879 - =

530,434 258,699 585 546
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26 BORROWINGS 26 MR
Group Company
L |
2010 2009 2010 2009
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
THE T TWwE Tl
Non-current EE
Long-term bank borrowings, = HAERFTEE » A HELH
secured 150,878 — - -
Current W
Short-term bank borrowings,  FHHIERITEE > MEHEH
unsecured 145,618 169,000 94,744 159,000
Current portion of long-term = HIERF T £ 2 R
bank borrowings, secured B A KA 17,204 - - -
162,822 169,000 94,744 159,000
Total borrowings lisRs vkl 313,700 169,000 94,744 159,000
(a)  The exposure of the bank loans of the Group and the (a) A A B B A ) SR AT BT TH
Company to interest rate changes and the weighted average | 5 S ) g o RE -39 B [ A
effective interest rates are as follows: TN
Group Company
L |
2010 2009 2010 2009
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
THE T TR TR
At floating rates Eirae SN 313,700 169,000 94,744 159,000
Weighted average TIHRESE- 24 B R
effective interest
rates 1.06% 1.63% 1.23% 1.61%

The carrying amounts of the bank loans are denominated in

HKS$ and approximate their fair values.

SRAT R 2 R T (E DAY ST RHE
A B EARS
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26 BORROWINGS (Continued) 26 fEfE )
(b)  The maturity of borrowings is as follows: (b) BEEZEMEWT
Group Company
#M A
2010 2009 2010 2009

HKS$’000 HK$000  HK$°000 HKS$’000
T#x T IT T#x T IT

Within one year —4E N 145,618 169,000 94,744 159,000
Over five years AR AT 168,082 = - =
313,700 169,000 94,744 159,000
(¢)  The repayment terms of borrowings are as follows: (c) R AR
Group Company
#M A
2010 2009 2010 2009

HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
T#x T TT T#xL T TT

Within one year —4ER 162,822 169,000 94,744 159,000
In the second year AN 17,339 = - =
In the third to fifth year 25 =25 L 4FER 52,969 - - -
Over five years A AT 80,570 = - =
313,700 169,000 94,744 159,000
(d) Banking facilities, including borrowings, trade finance and (d) RATRLE (REHS - RO ME
other general banking facilities, were secured as follows: B HAth— R AT RVE) T3 LR 41
TH H VR4 -
Group Company
L |
2010 2009 2010 2009

HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
T T o T#x T o

Secured against a Pl—ZK M@ AR Z

property and leasehold 3¢ S A0 & -4

land of a subsidiary FEHEAT 178,045 = - =
Guaranteed by A A SR

the Company 101,329 42,000 - -
Guaranteed by oI — K A F IR

a subsidiary 173,300 148,000 173,300 148,000
Unsecured HESE A 325,000 264,329 325,000 264,329

777,674 454,329 498,300 412,329

Corresponding banking £ 5 Jfl i AHEER T T
facilities utilised il & 313,700 169,000 94,744 159,000
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26 BORROWINGS (Continued) 26 fEfE )
(d) At 31st March 2010, bank borrowings of HK$168,082,000 (d) 20103 H31H » &A%
were secured by a property and leasehold land of the Group 168,082,000 # 7t Z $R1T{H B 2 LA
with carrying amount of HK$51,705,000 (Note 17) and 7 45 18] B T8 (843 7l 7% 51,705,000
HK$215,365,000 (Note 18) respectively. Wt (B 5E 17) % 215,365,000 #5 70
(B 5E18) Z#)3E AR T A 4K

o
At 31st March 2010, the Group and the Company R20104E3 A 31 H » 4 4 B &
had undrawn committed borrowing facilities of ARG R R AR 2 B RS
HK$463,974,000 (2009: HK$285,329,000) and BERE 463,974,000 7T (20094F :
HK$403,556,000 (2009: HK$253,329,000), respectively, 285,329,009 %) 403,556,000

which are expiring within one year. JG (2009 4F © 253,329,000 % 7T ) >

A AR R E o

27 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM 27 BN BBy i e
(a)  Share capital (@ JBAK

Company
N
2010 2009
No. of shares HK$°000 No. of shares HK$°000
JBe 4y i H T#IL JiligliE g T

Authorised: HIE ¢
Ordinary shares of T ICTA(E 0.1 5T
HKS$0.1 each 25 800,000,000 80,000 800,000,000 80,000
Issued and fully paid: T AT AR -
Ordinary shares of BB E (0.1 W T
HKS$0.1 each gL
At 1st April and W4H1H
31st March M3 H31H 492,507,850 49,250 492,507,850 49,250
(b)  Share premium (b)  JReprsang
Company and Group
2w RAEE
HK$°000
THT

At 31st March 2009 and 2010 J22009 &% 20104E3 H 31 H 58,884
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28 fafli
Group (a M
Capital ~ Revaluation Exchange Statutory Retained
reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
B kBt I Sk i iy PREEA k]
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T#L T#L T#L T#iL T#L T#L
(note i) (note ii)
(Wit 1) (Wit i)
For theyearended  #R%E20104£3 1
31st March 2010 31 HOEAE B
At Ist April 2009 1200944 A 1H 135,713 2,933 29,688 19,418 959,684 1,147,436
Profit attributable to /NGl
equity holders of R MRS
the Company il - - - - 531,632 531,632
Transfer L - - - 16,865 (16,865) -
Exchange differences MBS 4f - - 5,565 - - 5,565
Surplus on revaluation 3£ BB
of properties - 5,430 - - - 5,430
Deferred tax WEZ BB
arising from A Z RIERUR
surplus on revaluation  ([ff7£29)
of properties (Note 29) - (884) - - - (884)
2008/09 final E1$2008/09 4
dividend paid KIS - - - - (59,101) (59,101)
2009/10 interim £ 2000/10 4
dividend paid L - - - - (73,876) (73,876)
At 31st March 2010 201043 131 H 135,713 7479 35,253 36,283 1,341,474 1,556,202
Representing: %
Reserves ikt 135,713 7479 35253 36,283 1,203,572 1,418,300
Proposed dividend IR - - - - 137,902 137,902
At 31st March 2010 201043 131 H 135,713 7479 35,253 36,283 1,341,474 1,556,202
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28 RESERVES (Continued) 28 it (50
(@)  Group (Continued) (@ M &)
Capital ~ Revaluation Exchange Statutory Retained
Teserve Teserve Teserve Teserve eamings Total
BARfk Bkl T 5t e Rk RAEF ik
HKS 000 HKS$7000 HKS$7000 HK$7000 HK$°000 HKS$7000
RRTT SR SR SR Tt SR
(note 1) (note ii)
(Bif3E 1) (Fhf3E ii)
For theyearended  #k% 200943
315t March 2009 31 HILAEE
At Ist April 2008 1#20084E4 H 1 H 135,713 3,030 30,533 5416 799,490 974,182
Profitattributable to ~ AAFIERFA A
equity holders of JE i
the Company - - - - 275,160 275,160
Transfer g = = - 14,002 (14,002) -
Exchange differences MBS % 4f = = (845) - - (845)
Deficit on revaluation 422 B AblAl
of properties - 97 - - - 97)
2007/08 final E£$2007/08 4F
dividend paid A = - = = (76,339) (76,339)
2008/09 interim B £+2008/09 4F
dividend paid I L = = = = (24,625) (24,625)
At31stMarch2009 200943 31 H 135,713 2,933 29,688 19418 959,684 1,147,436
Representing: i
Reserves fitti 135,713 2,933 29,688 19,418 900,583 1,088,335
Proposed dividend BRI = = = = 59,101 59,101
At31stMarch2009 200943 A 31 H 135,713 2,933 29,688 19418 959,684 1,147,436
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RESERVES (Continued) 28 filifl (0
(a)  Group (Continued) (a) M &)
Note: 5T -
(i) The capital reserve of the Group represents the difference (i) AR ] 2 A A 4G A 4
between the nominal value of the shares of the acquired A 1997 47 F A1 e i i 51 7
subsidiaries, and the nominal value of the Company’s A ) A7 22 TR (L B i g
shares issued for the acquisition at the time of the Group’s B A R 22 A5 T (L T (] 2
reorganisation in 1997. FEH o
(ii) Statutory reserves are non-distributable and the transfers of (ii) 12 5 i T A ] T LSRR
these funds are determined by the Board of Directors of the R R it At 7 e AR B A I R
relevant PRC subsidiaries in accordance with the relevant JB N ) 2 e AR R P B AR B
laws and regulations in the PRC. EA R HBIE
()  Company (b) Ax
Contributed Retained
surplus earnings Total
BHA BRE A B
HK$000  HKS$000  HK$°000
TR THE  TER
For the year ended B2 2010453 H
31st March 2010 31 H 4R
At 1st April 2009 R 200944 1 H 298,687 113,870 412,557
Profit for the year AR R | - 199,589 199,589
2008/09 final dividend paid L4 2008/09 4F AR WS, - (59,101) (59,101)
2009/10 interim dividend paid B 2009710 4F IS, - (73,876) (73,876)
At 31st March 2010 A 201043 H 31 H 298,687 180,482 479,169
Representing: Rk -
Reserves G4 298,687 42,580 341,267
Proposed dividend HEIR B R - 137,902 137,902
At 31st March 2010 A20104E3 H 31 H 298,687 180,482 479,169
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28 RESERVES (Continued) 28 fit i ()
(b) Company (Continued) (b) A (%)
Contributed Retained
surplus earnings Total
Bz R BE 2 F) R

HK$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$’000
TETT Tiso TiETT

For the year ended B 2009453 H

31st March 2009 31 H IL4ERE
At 1st April 2008 A 20084F4 H 1 H 298,687 104,941 403,628
Profit for the year A Vs | = 109,893 109,893
2007/08 final dividend paid 45 2007/08 4F AR HAE. = (76,339) (76,339)
2008/09 interim dividend paid EL 7 2008/09 4F J H A i 5L = (24,625) (24,625)
At 31st March 2009 200943 H31 H 298,687 113,870 412,557
Representing: Rk -
Reserves fitifhe 298,687 54,769 353,456
Proposed dividend PR B = 59,101 59,101
At 31st March 2009 200943 H31 H 298,687 113,870 412,557

AN ) 2 BRI R AR AN A B 5L
#: Luk Fook Investment (B.V.I.)

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the
difference between the nominal value of the shares issued

by the Company in exchange for all the issued ordinary
shares of Luk Fook Investment (B.V.I.) Limited and the
value of net assets of the underlying subsidiaries acquired
by the Company during the Group’s reorganisation in 1997.
Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus is distributable to the shareholders,
provided that the Company would, after the payment of
dividends out of the contributed surplus, be able to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or the realisable value of

the Company’s assets would thereby not be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities, its issued share capital and its
share premium. At the Group level, the contributed surplus is
reclassified into its component of reserves of the underlying
subsidiaries.

Limited 4> % £ 584745 48 B 177 551 7
JBeth 2 B » BRZARZS R 1997 4F
T Ve S A [ Ao A ) 2 N (E
WE 2 250 o MRIR A 554 1981 4F
AT (BAERT) - BB AR TR
BT RO - MEARA F BB
IRAT B A% > WAZH AR A B
I i i R 05 UM Bt E R AR > AR
N F) 28 ] S B AR g R
HARH - HE 347 A Ay
i B 2 HAN - DAEE I S
VB SR A S 0 B 5 A
N P At S
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29 DEFERRED TAXATION 29 BEBUH
Deferred taxation of the Group is provided in respect of: 7 4 [ A0 SiE B TE G 5 51 A5 T AE S
i -
Tax depreciation Unrealised profit on Undistributed profit of
allowances closing inventories PRC subsidiaries Total
BB MAHEZ RA R
] REBLRA B 2 7 A
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$°000 HK$000  HKS'000 HK$'000  HKS'000
T T TEx  TiEc T T T#x  Tbx

At st April R4H1H 3,565 2,870 10,553 11,971 (2,858) - 11,260 14,841
(Charged)/credited ~ (1I) /

to the income A

statement Bk

(Note 11) (3 11) (74) 695 1) (1418 G69)  @8%) (814 (38
Charged directly ~ EL#%/MHAD

to other BN

comprehensive BRI

income (k28 ()

(Note 28(2)) (884) - . - - - (884) -
At 31st March W3A31A 2,607 3,565 10,442 10,553 (6,487) (2,358) 6,562 11,260
Representing: 3K -

2010 2009

HK$’000 HK$°000

T THsTT

Deferred tax assets RS AE E E 13,677 14,240
Deferred tax liabilities IEAEBLH A 7 (7,115) (2,980)

6,562 11,260

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried ) 0 UMl 1 T R A AR SE T AR

forward to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit FE o MEZEA R RE A A H 1% E SRR v ) e

through the future taxable profit is probable. As at 31st March 2010, TRAHBABLE A £ o A 20104F3 H31H -

the Group had potential unrecognised deferred tax assets amounting AL WA AT AT R H A RERR B

to HK$6,533,000 (3 1st March 2009: HK$7,276,000) in respect of tax N A B Ll 4R 2 95 T 1A R ke AL A

losses to be carried forward against future taxable income. These tax THE 7 6,533,000 # ¢ (200943 H 31 H ¢

losses have no expiry date. 7,276,000 # 7T) © A7 BB IE S N 6 A

FAHARR -
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29 DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

Pursuant to the relevant PRC corporate income tax rules and
regulations, withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared in
respect of profits earned by the Group’s PRC subsidiaries from

1st January 2008. Deferred income tax liabilities of approximately
HK$6,487,000 (2009: HK$2,858,000) have not been provided for
in these consolidated financial statements in respect of temporary
differences attributable to accumulated profits of the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries as the Group controls the dividend policy of these PRC
subsidiaries and it is probable that these temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

30 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS —

LONG SERVICE PAYMENT
Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group is

obligated to make lump sum payments on cessation of employment
in certain circumstances to certain employees who have completed
at least five years of service with the Group. The amount payable is
dependent on the employees’ final salary and years of service, and is
reduced by entitlements accrued under the Group’s retirement plan
that are attributable to contributions made by the Group. The Group
does not set aside any assets to fund any remaining obligations. The
long service payments are paid out from the Group’s cash in hand
when such payments are required.

The latest actuarial valuation as at 31st March 2010 specifically
designated for the Group’s employees was completed by a qualified
actuary, Mercer (Hong Kong) Limited, using projected unit credit

29

30

BB (81
AL R A P B b 32 5 00k 01 2 AL491 »

200841 H 1 HE » SiASEE [ 2 A i}
B 4 AT i BB A UR 2 S R S A
FIBL o R AE T 15 B TH & 15 4 6,487,000
JE (2009 4F : 2,858,000 i#5 7T ) 3 A A 5% %5
S B AR T A A T 2 v I A A
A B 5 A 2 0T IR S AR AR > R
1 78 A T AT o) 5% S5 v I R A ) 22 ik
RO DA R % 55 0 IR 25 AR AE ] R 2R
TR o

B B R A — 1R85 4

AR e R e 1) > AR A ST
TAEUWT - AR A S M ) 1A
A TR B A 1 Ry i HL S A B R
H o BEAT IR TS A B (R B 2 AR F
4 T AR B 45 I 5 > Sl 25 A AR R AR
FHEIET - HALEZ Ml 2 257
SR o A< I S0t o AT o) 2 AR A AT
e T JAE 2 E & o AT E ST B
IR > REARE M 2 F B &SP R
HAmeRs 4

& & ¥ K 5 BfiMercer (Hong Kong)
Limited PATEF! B0 15 F005 78 R 7y AR 4
P 21 A S 2 2010483 A 31 H e ks

method. SEREAl o
(@)  The amount recognised in the balance sheet is as follows: (a) B B R HERR S IHN T
Group
L]
2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$°000
T TH#TT
Present value of defined A EAEZ BUA

benefit obligations 12,266 22,733




30 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS —
LONG SERVICE PAYMENT (Continued)

(b) Movements in the net liability recognised in the balance

30
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D B A 34 — B B0 R 5

(#0)
(b) G E AR B

sheet are as follows: AR
Group
A
2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$°000
T#IL T
At beginning of the year FH) 22,733 8,710
(Income)/expenses recognised A 75 FfERR 2

in the income statement () /B (10,467) 14,023
At end of the year G S 12,266 22,733
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30 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS — 30 0@ BRI AT — R 8IS 4
LONG SERVICE PAYMENT (Continued) (%)
(¢)  (Income)/expense recognised in the income statement is as (c) R LR Z (A /B
follows: T
Group
gL
2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$°000
TFL TG
Current service cost RS 2 2,020 1,485
Interest cost FILE A 455 235
Net actuarial (gain)/losses EHERRRE (k)
recognised R AR (12,930) 12,327

Long service payment benefit =% 248
made net of MPF Scheme (nprim A e FE# )

benefits 12) (24)
(10,467) 14,023

(d)  The (income)/expense is recognised in the following line (d) %A () /BSR4 R U

items in the income statement: FIEH R
Group
g L]

2010 2009

HK$’000 HK$°000

T#xT T

Selling and distribution costs &8 X485 ] (5,548) 7,432
Administrative expenses 1T 4,919) 6,591

(10,467) 14,023
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30 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS — 30 R BH AR - RBRS &
LONG SERVICE PAYMENT (Continued) (%)
(e)  The principal actuarial assumptions used as at 31st March (e) A 20104E3 H 31 A 2 FZA
2010 (expressed as weighted average) are as follows: B (LUMHEFEY 2oR) 30 F
Group
gL
2010 2009
Discount rate PrigeR 3% 2%
Future salary increment KA Hr e
Year 2010 2010 4F 4% 0%
Year 2011 2011 4F 4% 1%
Year 2012 2012 4 4% 2%
Year 2013 and thereafter 2013 4F K 2 1% 4% 4%
Return of MPF balances SR A A R R 3% 2%
31 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 31 BEeRB&HFED
Group Company
gL | A
2010 2009 2010 2009

HKS$’000 HK$000  HK$°000 HKS$’000
T#x T TT T#x T IT

Denominated in: FHE -
HKS$ VST 142,830 127,463 569 584
RMB PN 121,826 133,591 - -
Other currencies HAth &5 22,290 19,071 - 624
286,946 280,125 569 1,208
Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank SRATAE SR H SRAT ¥ B A7 3R 5 I
deposit rates. The conversion of the RMB denominated balances into FLEL o N R &5 B 540 7y 0l 7 22 v B
foreign currencies is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign WU 2 AN T R B i K B R

exchange control promulgated by the PRC government.
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32 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 32 EABEREER
FLOWS
Reconciliation of profit before taxation to net cash generated from I B0 i i ) B R 7 A 2 B AR AR
operations: HRANF -
2010 2009
HK$°000 HK$’000
T T
Profit before taxation RS i it A1) 634,250 316,021
Amortisation of leasehold land LB el % i e P A
and land use rights 3,572 366
Depreciation of property, W3 ~ Wfm BBt es
plant and equipment 40,187 36,055
Provision for impairment of GENR e ARG i
leasehold improvement - 2,315
Loss on disposal of property, HEYZE - RKE &
plant and equipment SR LA B A i 1R
and leasehold land 1,106 351
Deficit on revaluation of VE V]
properties 6 6
(Reversal of)/provision for long R 4 () Bt
service payment (10,455) 14,047
Interest income FLEMA (342) (495)
Interest expense FILEBA 5L 3,171 8,302
Share of results of JEAL — R N R AR
an associate (2,343) (1,230)
Operating profit before B EREEZ
working capital changes S | 669,152 375,738
Increase in rental deposits THEHEIGM (5,504) (1,283)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories 5 () web (513,145) 29,165
Increase in trade and other B T e Fo A Y HRIA -
receivables, deposits e KA BRIELS i
and prepayments (38,841) (3,153)
(Increase)/decrease in amount due JRE i — FR B )
from an associate FIE (Hhn) /b 1,471) 13,397
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables, 2 5 MEATHRIE - HAbMEST
other payables and accruals WRTE S e T 3R IE R In (kD) 271,735 (26,045)
Decrease in employee & B AE I AT s D
benefit obligations (12) (24)
Net cash generated from R A AR
operations 381,914 387,795
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COMMITMENTS 33 &
(a) Capital commitments (a) HEARRISE
Group
e
2010 2009
HK$°000 HK$’000
T T
Contracted but not provided BRI AEARAE H 2
for property, plant and W2 ~ Wfm Bt
equipment 7,041 656
(b) Commitments under operating leases (b) BEAERSE
At 31st March 2010, the Group had future aggregate 201043 H31 H > AREEH+
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating b B R AR IR AS RIS 2 A A

leases in respect of land and buildings as follows:

ST 7 AR A Sl At 22 o R L £k
HEEE -

Group
e

2010 2009

HKS$’000 HK$’000

T T

Not later than one year —4ER 164,887 116,139
Later than one year and —AHERAH N AR

not later than five years 246,536 82,375

Later than five years 208 LA 31,705 460

443,128 198,974

The actual payments in respect of certain operating leases
are calculated at the higher of the minimum commitments
as noted above and the amounts determined based on a
percentage of the sales of the related outlets.

A TR AR A B AT 3% B3
Jof At e AU 7R 47 BELARL A AR B T 14
HRA T 0 Lo e E S 2
FE R o
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33 COMMITMENTS (Continued) 33 FRIfE@ED
(¢)  Future operating lease arrangements (c) ARRBBAMELHE
Future aggregate minimum lease receipts under non- HRABE AN W] i 2 458 7 AL B T 8 o
cancellable operating leases are as follows: AR 2 FARFH G ARFE AN T -
Group
#M
2010 2009
HK$°000 HK$°000
T THTT
Leasehold land and property — FH & -3 S ) 2E
Not later than one year —4ER 4,756 -
Later than one year and —AERAH NI AR
not later than five years 689 —
5,445 -
(d)  The Company did not have any significant commitment as at (d)  AAFER201043 A 31 Hlf 4
31st March 2010 (2009: Nil). Al B RRAE (2009 4F © HE) o
34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 34 FARWEALZRY
The Company is controlled by Luk Fook (Control) Limited (“Luk AN E 2 HE RS J B 7S AR (BEIR) AR
Fook Control”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin oy a) (TS TREER D) - A 0% g 46 AT o
Islands, which directly owns 47.55% of the Company’s shares. The BB SR RSL 2 AT > HEREA AN
remaining shares of the Company are widely held. Mr. WONG Wai 47.55% B By o A 45 F B R AR 4 BURE
Sheung and his family including Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny and A o AR SR R (45 HE S
Miss WONG Lan Sze, Nancy are discretionary beneficiaries of the A K T /MR B RERAE R (TE
Wong’s Family Trust (the “Trust”). The Trust is the beneficial owner FE ) 2 2REZ N o B R A TR ER
of the entire issued share capital of Kwai Kee Cheung Jewellery HRITARA RO BT RAZ T
& Goldsmith Company Limited which is the beneficial owner of BA N > HR R E ST A RA W H i
36.72% of issued shares of Luk Fook Control. The remaining shares WA 7St % 36.72% CLEEAT IR A © 754
of Luk Fook Control are widely held. PEIRER T IRAB I B A
(@) A subsidiary of the Company entered into a tenancy (@) A E] IR JE A F B A
agreement with Mr WONG Kwai Sang (deceased), Mr A 2 AHRE AR e (B0 FTar A
WONG Wai Sheung’s father, for the lease of a retail shop Bk - A E T A EEESE
of the Group for a period of 1 year (2009: 1 year). The BRI & > S5 14F (2009 4F ¢
related party transaction was early terminated on 31st LAE) o ARE LG & T2 =0
October 2009 subsequent to the sale of the retail shop to 1% » JRIEA BN 138 5 7E 2009
a third party. During the year ended 31st March 2010, £E10 H 31 HARHTA 1L - #i%2010
rental paid in respect of the tenancy agreement as a related EIF3IHIRERE > i —THA
party transaction amounted to HK$1,190,000 (2009: B 22 5 AR S5 e 2 A5 R
HK$2,040,000). 4 751,190,000 #5 T (2009 45

2,040,000 #7C) ©
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34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 34 AREALZ 35 @)
(Continued)
(b) A subsidiary of the Company entered into a service contract (b) AN T FKME S T AT /N

©

(“Service Contract”) with Miss YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline
and Topone Investments Limited (“Topone”) for a period of
2 years (2009: 1 year) expiring on 3 1st March 2011. Pursuant
to the Service Contract, Topone agreed to make available
Miss Yeung’s exclusive services for the promotion of the
products and services of the Group in consideration of an
annual fee of HK$286,750 (2009: HK$351,750).

Mr WONG Wai Sheung, Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny, Miss
WONG Lan Sze, Nancy and Miss YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline
are directors of the Company and have beneficial interests in
the Company.

HRTE—RERRAR ([F—])
FISLIRE A4 (TR A #1D) - 5
WI24F (20094F = 14F) » JA20114F
3H 31 H I jEE - RERE S 4
2 — [F] B AR /NI 11 A 42 [ R A
FIRHS - DA R A 48 1) 7 i
MRS > ARAE B & 4 286,750 #5 IT
(2009 4F : 351,750 #570) °

BN SE - EERESEA - W
b /ME B A B F /N AR )
B SRAN AV B i i o

Transactions with the associate (c) B N R 238 5
2010 2009
Note HK$°000 HK$°000
R 5T T#T THTT
Purchases of goods = (i) 122,031 174,746
Rental income T A (ii) 537 322
Management fee income EFHEIA (iif) 31 314
Note: Wk
) Purchases of goods were conducted in the ordinary (i) i H SRS AR T AR AR B
course of business at prices and terms based on mutual i e %2 1B A Bl Aok 3 I L B
agreements. il o
(ii) Rental income was charged at terms based on relevant lease (ii) HRIE T ET 57 2 AR B 6 1 ok
agreement. FRRAR B -
(iii) Management fee income was charged at terms based on (iii) ARAAH L 1 el 2 R K A

mutual agreements.

BRI
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34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 34 HBEANLZZRYE)
(Continued)
(d)  Key management compensation (d) F T I
2010 2009
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T T
Directors’ fees Gk 1,070 1,024
Salaries, allowances and Fé o BN REY A
benefits-in-kinds 38,906 33,058
Performance and HeRBMIE R 2
discretionary bonuses fEAL 16,414 8,356
Contributions to RIREFIEIEEK
pension plan 350 364
Total payable and JREA R IE K LA
expensed in the B R &
financial statements S8 B 56,740 42,802
35 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 35 EHEA AR
SUBSIDIARIES
At 31st March 2010, the Company had the following principal 2010453 H31 H > ARAF Z 1 EHE
subsidiaries: WEIANT ¢
Particulars of Percentage of
Place of issued share attributable
incorporation/ capital/registered interest held by the
establishment capital Company
Fia L A AT it ARAHPFHENHE  Principal activities
Yo S VEAE E P EE 3
2010 2009
Interests held directly:
BHHEAPA M
Luk Fook Investment BVI HK$2 100 100 Investment holding
(B.V.L) Limited PR HEAT B 2¥7T BEHERK
Interests held indirectly:
IR -
China Gems Laboratory Hong Kong HKS$2 100 100  Authentication of
Limited s 2T gemstones
R LR BT 0 L e
A BRA ]
Fancy Trend Investment Hong Kong HK$12,100 100 100 Property holding
Limited ik 12,1003 7C ERRcEYES

T EATIRA T
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SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Particulars of
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35  BEHEA A EER &)

Percentage of

Place of issued share attributable
incorporation/ capital/registered interest held by the
establishment capital Company
fiRL ) A CEATBAR,GElt A2 PR MEANHE  Principal activities
P 1B i B E-Yipidia B =31
2010 2009
Ice Collection Hong Kong HKS$100 100 100 Retailing of gold and
(International) Limited s 100 #7T jewellery products
UK (BIF) A BRA BB <A A o 2 2
Jewellworld.com Limited BVI HK$8,000,000 51 51 Investment holding, and
KEMABVIARAF JBHER RS 8,000,000 #5 7T provision of software
development and
services relating to
internet
POEFE - SRt B
R AR = B A AR B 5
Jewellworld.com Limited Hong Kong HKS$100 51 51 Investment holding, and
HREMA () ARAR  Fik 100 # T provision of software
development and
services relating to
internet
BeE R~ SRt p Bt
P TR BB
Luk Fook Bullions Dealers  Hong Kong HK$14,000,000 100 100  Gold bullion trading
Limited s 14,000,000 5 7T HEAMER
ANEEIEARA T
Luk Fook Holdings Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 Provision of management
Company Limited s 2570 services to group
NEEEARAF companies and
wholesale distribution of
gold and jewellery
products
FRALE PRI RS T AL
ACIDSE R Zox
PRE{ Al
Luk Fook Jewellery & Hong Kong HKS$100 100 100 Retailing of gold and
Goldsmith (HK) Tk 10070 jewellery products
Company Limited TRET 4 A T
IR E AT (FW)

AR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Y B e M ik

35 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

35 BB AR &)

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
Particulars of Percentage of
Place of issued share attributable
incorporation/ capital/registered interest held by the
establishment capital Company
wEbER s, CEATBAR EME ARAFBiFEAHE  Principal activities
P LB i A EYipidia B =371
2010 2009
Luk Fook Jewellery Macau MOP 1,000,000 100 100 Retailing of gold and
& Goldsmith (Macao) LA 1,000,000 {& M7t jewellery products in
Company Limited Macau
AR E AT () AR R < A
AR TS =
Luk Fook Jewellery & Canada CAS$ 100 100 100 Retailing of gold and
Goldsmith (Canada) mEkx 100 EKIT jewellery products in
Limited Canada
AAERE AT (NER) ISR FIRE
AR el A S
Luk Fook Jewellery & USA USD100 100 100 Retailing of gold and
Goldsmith (USA-NY) £ 100 3E7C jewellery products in
Company Limited USA
AR E AT (R — A S B R < Al
&) AR A TS =
Max Forum Development ~ Hong Kong HKS$100 100 100 Property holding
Limited i 100 7T EREER7E S
it A PR ]
Maxigood Enterprises Hong Kong HK$3,000,000 93.3 93.3 Manufacturing and
Limited His 3,000,000 #IT wholesale distribution of
AR SEAFRA R jewellery products
B RS Sy BHER BT 7
INTRERE (Y PRC HK$20,000,000 100 100 Manufacturing, wholesale,
HIRAT] E 20,000,000 #7¢ retailing of gold and
jewellery products

and provision of quality
examination services in
the PRC
AR R - R
M TGS MIRETE
DR A RT S 2 IR S
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SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Particulars of
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35  BEREA 6 @)

Percentage of

Place of issued share attributable
incorporation/ capital/registered interest held by the
establishment capital Company
sk, CEATBAR EME ARA FBiFEAHE  Principal activities
o S BEAEAY WH B
2010 2009
BMAmE A RS PRC HK$50,000,000 93.3 93.3 Manufacturing, wholesale,
e 50,000,000 7 7T retailing of gold and
jewellery products
and provision of quality
examination services in
the PRC
R BIAE R -
R MR E
DA B PR 8 1 RS
EREE (M) B i PRC HK$6,000,000 93.3 933 Manufacturing of jewellery
ARRAF* i 6,000,000 # 7T products in the PRC
i v ] SR R
EMFE EMARAR . PRC HK$35,000,000 100 100 Property holding in the PRC
H 35,000,000 ¥ C e ESEEEY/ES
R A (i) PRC USD200,000 100 100 Wholesale of polished
AR GE 200,000 3T diamond in the PRC
AR B B AT Y S
ANHEERE (dbaT) PRC HK$500,000 100 — Retailing of gold and
AIRAT]* H 500,000 #57G jewellery products in
Beijing, the PRC
eI R S
TR E i
JEE 7 A B R PRC HK$2,000,000 100 —  Brand building and
AHBRA R i 2,000,000 #57C promotion in the PRC
A P R ) S B A i

in the PRC.

The subsidiaries are established as wholly foreign-owned enterprises

Unless otherwise stated, all the above companies operate principally

in Hong Kong.

The above list includes the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results of the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give

details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,

result in particulars of excessive length.

’ % 455 R 2 ) R A R B BT 2 B AN

3 -

B A SIS > ot B A 28 Rl R
R ETS

Mo WPl /NN ) PNCIDEE & 3V E )
AR P AT R B N A 4
FEFEZ EEID o EHBL > RUIH
fubh I 22 7 2 R & 2 BRI IR -
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BUSINESS STRUCTURE

P

HONG KONG WHOLESALE

Luk Fook Holdings Company Limited

Luk Fook Bullions Dealers Limited

Maxigood Enterprises Limited

Luk Fook Corporate Gift (International) Limited
Luk Fook Diamond Company Limited

PRC MANUFACTURE & WHOLESALE
PNAREREL (BRI ARRAT

JE M AR A R T

EAME (BN & A R

JE A o A BR A

JE M MRS B A PR )

EAEE T (i) AR

PRC BRAND MANAGEMENT
JE M AR B R A B )

HONG KONG, MACAU & OVERSEAS
RETAIL

Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith (HK) Co., Limited

Ice Collection (International) Limited

Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith (Macao) Limited

Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith (Canada) Limited

Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith (USA) Company Limited

PRC RETAIL

PNAREREL (IEs0) ARRAT
PNAREREL (I A BRA 7] — B 73~ 7

FINANCE

Luk Fook Finance Limited

AUTHENTICATION

China Gems Laboratory Limited
China Gems Testing Centre (Macau) Limited

PORTAL BUSINESS

Jewellworld.com Limited

AL
AR A A ]
AR A IR

B A B 1)
AR (B ) AR 7
AR A R ]

W B At B
AARERE (B AR
B B B AT R 7
BRI (BOM) 25807 PR )
B R o B A 7
8 B PR
BT (i) A7 R )

H B o A B

O 7 G R A B 1)
il - B Rl A
AR AT (Fils) HIRA T
oK (BE) # LA
AR T (RF) HRA T

AR EEAT (NER) ARAF
AHRERE AT (SR AR

GRS

FSARERE (L)) ARRA T
PNAREREL (I A BRA T — BN 73 )

E
AARBBAT A 7
o

R E PO A PRA
PR 5 E b0 (P A FRA A

NEERE S
PR (Feils) TR T
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DISTRIBUTION OF LUK FOOK OUTLETS

IN THE PRC
BN FE B 0 5 A

THE PRC 'HHE

|
I
]

i}

Pt
Daqing &) ) %EE?I/"%}?
~ &&2 Heilongjia Harbin

N ¢Ry HFHL
‘ Changcﬁﬁ @ @) Muganjiang
Hbk
2y Wi/ SEAR 3K
&) Xinjiang / Urumchi e /g%r{)frﬁ 7y~ Jilin

: eSS AR ey
Inner Mongolia / Hohhotairport @) Beijing @

L2y
Hﬁil &

Y r’\ [ s
‘| 4,
'ql | PN 'g“ ‘ShanXI R
: Tai © m:ﬁﬁ/ﬁﬁ
1 Qingha?%r—?n% @ Gaﬁ‘sﬁ :cllyuan Shandong / Ji LA /K
‘ Jiangsu / Changzhou
Lanzﬁ;}ﬂ @ BT/ T o2y Zhengzhou . i
Shaanxi / Xian & @ @Nantong
% 2
.\t ﬁﬂl'l@@ ii hanghai
1 ) Ry B Hefei &) AL/ B
Q SICh:aJII‘\I @ @) & Wuhan @ Naﬁéji}r?g KM V Zhejiang / Hangzhou
. j H
-T"'-.i.. . i @&ilfn in L @ gﬂzhou
S Chenacu 99 @) @R ‘ Nanchang
P e @ Changsha Wi
Bl Hunan an
Guizhou ' T ¢3
Jlangm@ |
ﬂll}ﬂr"’- Qingyuan ¢2y
) M
a Liuzhou & <
Kunn%'ngg é‘ @ S

JHEPH 2y
Guangxi ¢} Ly Fogﬁaﬂ#\ @
Zhongshan @ -

Wi T £
Haﬁ?\‘?&l

The number of Luk Fook Group’s PRC outlets
as at 31st March 2010:

HBE20104E3 A31 H » AN a4 F R I
Self-operated outlets [1%/% : 36

Licensee outlets fifififtj5 : 483

Total outlets ## & : 519
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DISTRIBUTION OF THE GROUP’S SELF-OPERATED OUTLETS

AL 2 BB

LUK FOOK JEWELLERY 7 #i %k £
HONG KONG Fi#s

1

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

T B R 5 R T S5 SR T
G/F., 55 Queen’s Road Central, HK.

VS R ES 2 R 479 WAL T CH
Shop C, G/F, 479 Hennessy Rd., Causeway Bay, HK.

TSR I /2 S 505 S8 BHMM T B-CHl
Shop B-C, G/F, Radio City, 505 Hennessy Rd., Causeway Bay, HK.

T USSR E R 467-473 SEEL B BT R BT A-B Al
Shop A-B, G/F., Kin Tak Fung Comm. Bldg., 467-473 Hennessy
Road, Causeway Bay, HK

T i S T 1 22 B 32 9% 3 R AR 3 T 32A
Shop 32A, G/F., JP Plaza, 22 & 32 Paterson Street, Causeway Bay,
HK.

JUBEBL R AL RUEUHT A TR 53 %3 T A-C il
Shop A-C, G/F, 53 Fung Tak Rd., Fung Wong New Village, Wong
Tai Sin, KLLN.

JUBESHIEUE 221B-E SR A8 P 3B T G2 Ff
Shop G2, G/F, Hanford House, 221 B-E Nathan Rd., KLN.

JUREME SO 0E 315 571 il
G/F, 315 Nathan Rd, Jordan, KLN.

JUBE AT 77-79 SEHL T
G/F, 77-79 Mut Wah St., Kwun Tong, KLN.

JUBERE fA J 0 687-689 HEHL T
G/F, 687-689 Nathan Rd., Mongkok, KLN.

JUBERE FA1 308 603, 603A #5587 BUR b T G1-G2
Shop G1-G2, G/F, Sun Hing Bldg., 603, 603A Nathan Rd., Mongkok,
KLN.

JUBERE A Il 20 650-652 98 5 EELREHL T B &l
Shop B, G/F, Rex House, 650-652 Nathan Rd., Mongkok, KLN.

JUREIE A4 30K S80G-K S L G1-G2 K G13
Shop G1-G2 and G13, G/F, Nathan Centre 580G-K Nathan Rd.,
Mongkok, KLN.

JUBENE F1 30 612-618 HE 47 A4 K i~ SB 4R
Shop 5B, G/F., Good Hope Building, 612-618 Nathan Road,
Mongkok, KLN.

JUBERE F1 3280 707-713 SRS o R MR B 4 T A1-A2 B
Shop A1-A2, G/F., Silvercorp International Tower. 707-713 Nathan
Road, Mongkok, KLN.

bl 9 B 281 ST 14-17 354
Shop No. 14-17, G/F, 281 King’s Rd., North Point, HK.

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

Tl 95 578 400-404 BEHABT L LT
G/F, Ming Yuen Ctr., 400-404 King’s Rd., North Point, HK.

I K HERR B 39 9E LK B I5 2 12235237 Bk

Shop No. 235-237, Level 2, 39 Lung Sum Avenue, Landmark North,
Sheung Shui, N.T.

R KL 12 SR

Shop 12, KCRC Shatin Station, N.T.

B A 18 SRR RS 3 317 Al

Shop no 317, L3, New Town Plaza, 18 Sha Tin Centre Street, Shatin,
N.T.

JUBEILRESS TR AR B 50 1 I F4 B
Shop F4, Phase 1, Telford Plaza, Kowloon Bay, KLN.

ST G 1 R R 7 O MY LR o b i 30b 9%
Shop No. 30b, G/F, Commercial Accomodation of Park Central, No.
9 Tong Tak Street, Tseung Kwan O, Sai Kung, N.T.

B e R A 1 SR T RS AR 1 1 R 1141 9EAE
Shop No. 1141, L1, Phase 1,Tuen Mun Town Plaza, 1 Tuen Shing St.,
Tuen Mun, N.T.

JUBE ARV E S0 74-78 B5 SCH K B i T B #
Shop B, G/F., Manson House, 74-78 Nathan Rd., TST., KLN.

JUBERIDIE G 66-70 546 KB HL T A&G
Shop A & G, G/F, Golden Crown Court, No. 66-70 Nathan Road,
TST. KLN.

JURESR VPR A L A 3 9EEEATHL T 9 B 9ERH
Shop 9B, G/F, Star House, No. 3 Salisbury Road, TST., KLN.

JURESR VP IS E0E 178 5L T A 524k
Shop A, G/F., No. 178 Nathan Road, KLN

JURER VDL CE 111-139 ~ 143-161 M 165-181 SEAH BE G K
D T G15 K G169EAl K 11 8 5% fli

Shop Nos. G15 & G16 on Ground Floor and Shop No. 8 on 1st Floor,
Site D, Park Lane Shopper’s Boulevard, Nos. 111-139, 143-161 &
165-181 Nathan Road, KLN

JURER VP I ZOE 101 S8 B A S5 st 41 2-3 5% K2 14
Shops 2&3, G/F & M/F, Haiphong Mansion, 101 Nathan Road, TST.,
KLN.

W R R LA 55 BEE B RS 6 A
Shop 6, G/F, Emperor Plaza, 55 Chung On St., Tsuen Wan, N.T.

W2 A LA 98 L T
G/F, 98 Chung On St., Tsuen Wan, N.T.

B ICITE 1A 155 953 T
G/F, 155 Castle Peak Road, Yuen Long, N.T.



THE PRC "' &
1o P b s T SRR T R H B 138 58 A& B L1 11955 i

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

Shop 119, 1/F, Xin Dong An Market, 138 Wang Fu Jing Street, Dong

Cheng District, Beijing, the PRC

F A T S S SO AR A 3 SR sk T R — g

1/F, New World Mall, 3 Chong Wan Men Wai Street, Chong Wen

District, Beijing, the PRC

F R b T T P AR [ T AL KA 120 SEVE B — e

1/F, Xi Dan Mall, 120 North Xi Dan Street, Xi Cheng District,

Beijing, the PRC

A T I 3 K [ 93 R 5 4 S By A JA 2 A

No. A, 2/F, Wan Da Plaza, 93 Lang Garden, Jian Guo Road, Chao

Yang District, Beijing, the PRC

;@ﬂ?ﬁﬁ%@ﬁ@%2%%%@EEE*@¢E§%%§
iy

Gold Jewellery Section, 2 Huayuan Road, Haidian, Beijing, the PRC

o B LT P R AR B ) KA 101 5% R O BRET L

—J&

1/F, Jewellery Section North, Parkson Shopping Centre, 101 Fu Xing
Men Nei Street, Xicheng District, Beijing, the PRC

o I T 2 I IR T PG 77 1 SR VG B e B S Bk
2/F, Jewellery Section, Shunyi Xi Dan Mall, 1 Fugian West Street,
Shunyi District, Beijing, the PRC

e g L s 5 [ DU B b 189 BEPR BRI — g

1/F, Jewellery Section North, 189 Dong Si Huan Zhong Road,
Zhaoyang District, Beijing, the PRC

P b TSRO I KT 138 55 R A I S i By — Ak
TR [

1/F Jewellery Section, Dong An Market, 138 Wang Fu Jing Street,
Dong Cheng District, Beijing, the PRC

e b s o A AR 15 SR st R G —

1/F, Changan Shopping Centre, 15 Fuwai Road , Xicheng District,
Beijing, the PRC

e A e T g - R 3 SR B B —

1/F, Xidan Shopping Centre, 3 Shilibaojia road, Zhaoyang District,
Beijing, the PRC

R L SR TSR TR e IR AT 99 SR RE SILIAE ) SR 5 S e
Jinan Yinzuo Underground Shopping Plaza, 99 Le-yuan Street, Lixia
District, Jinan City, Shandong Province, the PRC

e L SRR I R T A L T B 1S R e\ — )

Shop 81, Yinzuo Commercial City, 15 Yingxiong Shanxi Road, Jinan
City, Shandong Province, the PRC

F T T N T 4E 2 % 546 SR B R4S R — 18

1/F, Hang Zhou Department Store, 546 Yan An Street, Hangzhou
City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC

r B AT T LN T AR 2409 AR I A R —

1/F, Jiebai Shopping Centre, 249 Jiefang Road, Hangzhou, Zhejiang
Province, the PRC

e R TV T T R LR T O v B 288 B RE AR R SR T £ — A
1/F, Huidelong Inlong Shopping Centre , 288 Shixinzhong Road,
Xiaoshan District, Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province, the PRC

e L 2 T e L K 756 SR — A

1/F, Grand Ocean Department Store, 756 Zhong Shan Rd., Jianghan
District, Wuhan City, Hubei Province, the PRC

o b 2 T R O 688 St 1 SR ) L —
1/F, World Trade Shopping Centre, 688 Jie Fang Rd., Wuhan City,
Hubei Province, the PRC

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.
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o BRI 5 R T S R g B 7 SR b R RS A e
1/F, Zhong Shang Plaza Shopping Centre, 7 Zhong Nan Rd.,
‘Wuchang District, Wuhan City, Hubei Province, the PRC

e L T L PR 569 WE AR T B B —
1/F, Jian Er Department Store, 569 Heping Road, Qingshan District,
Wauhan City, Hubei Province, the PRC

AL B R TR B IR AR RO 18 SR b R B
JE—

1/F, Pinmao Shop, Wuhan Zhongshang Department Store, 18 Xudong
Road, Wuchang District, Wuhan City, Hubei Province, the PRC

o - 4 B YR RO 374 BERERS 377 8
Wuhan SOGO, No.374 Jiefang Road, Jianghan District, Wuhan City,
Hubei Province, the PRC

e B 8 b T SRR R Al B IR 4t SO B 3 9 1
15 101 568 KFEHE

Grand Ocean Shopping Centre, No.3 section 1, 101 Guanggu Street,
Wuhan City, Hubei Province, the PRC

o R AL 7 T T A A T A 687 R B 21 HHE AL oL
Hanshang 21 Century Shopping center, 687 Hanyang Road, Hanyang
District, Wuhan City, Hubei Province, the PRC

o L 2 T R T TR 1 SR

1/F, Grand Ocean Shopping Centre, No.1 Ergiao Road, Hanyang
District, Wuhan City, Hubei Province, the PRC

e L A T AR L [RAE B 36 SR e — A

1/F, Hayoung Shopping Centre, 36 Changzheng Road, Fan Cheng
District, Hubei Province, the PRC

FP R I A T T A R R 13 SRR A Y b

1/F, Xiangfan Shopping Centre, 13 Changhong Road, Fan Cheng
District, Hubei Province, the PRC

o L 1 B LB

1/F, Shanghai Paris Spring Building, 1 Songhu Road, Yangpu
District, Shanghai City, the PRC

L 1 A 918 5 L6y T B

4/F, Shanghai Parkson Dept Store, No. 918, Huai Hai, Shanghai City,
the PRC

e L T T R D SRS SRR P 2 % 3459 5% i R T
Van’s Department Store, 3459 Hunan Road, Zhoupu District,
Shanghai City, the PRC

e R TR T 30 B SR AT o 89 S8 BRI b AL B 7 £
2/F, Lanzhou New World Hui Mei Department Store, 89 Zhang Ye
Road, Chengguan District, Lanzhou City, Gansu Province, the PRC
o A R T N T A H R M 22 B A P13 A B
(C9309)

No0.C9309, Section P13, Waiting Area, Bai Yun Airport, Hua Du
District, Guangzhou City, Guangdong Province, the PRC

F T YL S T P UL 220 SRR IS B B —

1/F, Ningbo No.2 Department Store, 220 Zhongshan Road, Ningbo
City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC

PP e T R LR B 79 S R R R SR A

1/F, Nanjing Central Mall, 79 Zhong Shan Nan Rd., Nanjing City, the
PRC

o 1L PG KT /DN T 99 B KR R

Tai Yuan Wang Fu Jing Department Store, 99 Qin Xian Street, Xiao
Dian District, Tai Yuan City, Shanxi Province, the PRC

rPEIVE R AT 7 1 106 98 A T R b — e

1/F, Parkson Shopping Centre, 106 Fangta Road, Changshu City

143




Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 75442 [H] (B [#%) A BR/2#]

DISTRIBUTION OF THE GROUP’S SELF-OPERATED OUTLETS
AG M Z 8 BN i

MACAU 3™

1 MG 325 SR T
No. 325 Avenida Almeida Ribeiro, Macau

2 PR TR 12-18 58 T
Avenida Do Infante D.Henrique No: 12-18, Macau

3 TEPTER ORI S B R R I VR R 3 AR G i DR ] ) o 2018 S il
Shop No. 2018, The Grand Canal Shoppes, The Venetian Macao-Resort-Hotel, The Cotal Strip, Taipa, Macau

4 BEPIBRE TRIGHE S8R TR T A
Em Macau, Avenida Do Infante D. Henrique No 58, Comercial Infante Res-Do-Chao A

5 MPARAR AT 4 58T
G/F, Rua De S. Domingos No. 4, Macau

Canada &KX

1  Unit 2160, Aberdeen Centre, 4151, Hazelbridge Way, Richmond, B.C. V6X 3RS, Canada

USA %

1  Store A, 185 Canal Street, New York, NY 10013, USA



G s EEE(EE) SRS

~2” LUK FOOK HOLDINGS (INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED

T U B B 41 SR AIAC Z 3 5 I SR SR SRAT 0251
25th Floor, BEA Tower, Millennium City 5, 418 Kwun Tong Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2308 1218 Fax: (852) 2374 1696
Website: www.lukfook.com.hk E-mail: group@lukfook.com.hk
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